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Oxeia Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.
361 Newbury Street
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Up to $1,234 999 89 in Series CF Preferred Stock at $0.79
Minimum Target Amount: $19,999.64

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless you can afford to lose yvour
entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the terms of the offering,
including the merits and risks involved. These securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state
securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed upon the accuracy or
adequacy of this document.

The U.5. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any securities offered or the terms of the
offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5. Securities and Exchange Commission
has not made an independent determination that these securities are exempt from registration.

In the event that we become a reporting company under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we intend to take advantage of
the provisions that relate to "Emerging Growth Companies” under the JOBS Act of 2012, including electing to delay
compliance with certain new and revised accounting standards under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,



Company:

Company: Oxeia Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.
Address: 361 Newbury Street, Boston, MA 02115
state of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: March 19, 2014

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $19,999.64 | 25,316 shares of Series CF Preferred Stock
Offering Maximum: $1,234,999.89 | 1,563,291 shares of Series CF Preferred Stock
Type of Security Offered: Series CF Preferred Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: 80,79

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $499.28

*Maximum number of shares offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See Bonus info below,
Investment Incentives & Bonuses®
Loyalty Bonus: Existing stakeholders in Oxeia Biopharmaceuticals will receive 25% bonus shares,
Time-Based Perks
Early Bird 1: Invest 31,000+ within the first 2 weeks and receive 7% bonus shares.
Early Bird 2: Invest 5,000+ within the first 2 weeks and receive 10% bonus shares.
Early Bird 3: Invest $10,000+ within the first 2 weeks and receive 15% bonus shares + exclusive newsletter access.
Early Bird 4: Invest 520,000+ within the first 2 weeks and receive 20% bonus shares.
Early Bird 5: Invest $50,000+ within the first 2 weeks and receive 25% bonus shares + quarterly update call with CEO.
Flash Perk 1: Invest $2,500+ between days 35 - 40 and receive 12% bonus shares.
Flash Perk 2: Invest 32,500+ between days 60 - 65 and receive 10% bonus shares.
Amount-Based Perks
Tier 1 Perk: Invest 500+ and receive 3% bonus shares.
Tier 2 Perk: Invest $1,000+ and receive 5% bonus shares.
Tier 3 Perk: Invest £5,000+ and receive 7% bonus shares.
Tier 4 Perk: Invest $10,000+ and receive 10% bonus shares + invitation to an exclusive webinar.
Tier 5 Perk: Invest $20,000+ and receive 15% bonus shares

*In order to receive perks from an investment, one must submit a single investment in the same offering that meets the
minimum perk requirement. Bonus shares from perks will not be granted if an investor submits multiple investments that,
when combined, meet the perk requirement. All perks occur when the offering is completed.

Crowdfunding investments made through a self-directed IRA cannot receive non-bonus share perks due to tax laws. The
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) prohibits self-dealing transactions in which the investor receives an immediate, personal
financial gain on investments owned by their retirement account. As a result, an investor must refuse those non-bonus
share perks because they would be receiving a benefit from their IRA account.

The 10% StartEngine Venture Club Bonus

Oxeia Biopharmaceuticals, Inc. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all investments that are committed by investors
that are eligible for the StartEngine Venture Club.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares they purchase in this offering. For
example, if you buy 100 shares of Series CF Preferred Stock at $0.79/ share, you will receive 110 shares of Series CF Preferred
Stock, meaning you'll own 110 shares for $79. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be determined
by rounding down to the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investor's eligibility period. Investors eligible for this bonus will also have priority it



they are on a waitlist to invest and the company surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to
invest should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will receive the highest single bonus they are eligible for among the bonuses based on the amount invested and
the time of offering elapsed (if any). Eligible investors will also receive the Venture Club Bonus and the Loyalty Bonus in
addition to the aforementioned bonus.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview
Company Overview

Oxeia Biopharmaceuticals is a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company developing novel therapeutics for unmet medical
needs in neurology. The Company’s lead program, OXE103, is a first-in-class, acylated human ghrelin therapy in late-stage
clinical development for the treatment of persistent post-concussion symptoms. OXE103 has demonstrated robust safety,
dose activity, and clinical proof-of-concept efficacy in a Phase 2a study, showing an 85% response rate in treated patients
versus 33% for standard of care. Originally studied for appetite stimulation, ghrelin has since been found to possess
pleiotropic neuroprotective properties—including anti-inflammatory, anti-apoptotic, pro-neurometabolic, and neurogenic
effects—that directly address the pathophysiology of concussion. Oxeia is led by an experienced management team with a
track record of developing and commercializing therapeutics acquired by major pharmaceutical companies. In 2017, we
acquired certain rights to data generated by Daiichi Sankyo during preclinical, clinical and manufacturing development of
the natural human hormone, ghrelin. The rights were for treatment of mild traumatic brain Injury (concussion). Ghrelin,
referred to as OXE103 in Oxeia development studies, has not been approved by the FDA for any indications. The license
provides access to an open FDA IND containing full preclinical safety data as well as safety data from four human Phase I
studies, four multi-dose human Phase Il studies, and one Phase [11 study. These studies represent a patient safety database
of over 300 patients treated via subcutaneous or intravenous routes of administration. In addition, the license includes
access to GMP manufactured clinical supply that can be used in Oxeia’s Phase 2 clinical development programs.

License Summaries
License for intellectual property from Regents of the University of California

In June 2014, we obtained an exclusive worldwide license to intellectual property from the Regents of the University of
California. The license, which has a term which ends on the expiration date of the longest-lived patent rights, grants us
exclusive, worldwide rights to intellectual property related to the use of ghrelin to treat concussions. The license is
terminable by the University of California if we fail to perform or violate any term of the agreement and fail to cure such
default within 90 days. We may terminate the agreement at any time upon 920 days written notice to the University of
California. The license includes rovalty and milestone payments in an amount up to $6 million that are tied to clinical
development and business milestones. The milestones include: enrollment of 1st patient in a Phase 11 Clinical trial, $10,000,
upon enrollment of the 20th patient in a Phase I1 Clinical trial, $10,000, upon enrollment of the 1st patient in a Phase I11
clinical trial, $600,000, upon raising additional capital of more than $2m, $65,000, filing an NDA with the FDA, $1,000,000,
upon receiving regulatory approval in the European Union (“EU”) for sale of a Licensed Product, $300,000, upon receiving
regulatory approval for sale of Licensed Product in a non-US, non-EU country, $500,000, upon aggregate Net Sales of
Licensed Products cumulatively totaling fifty Million dollars (US$50,000,000), US $1,000,000, upon aggregate Net Sales of
Licensed Products cumulatively totaling one hundred Million dollars (USS100,000,0007 51,000,000, and upon ageregate Net
Sales of Licensed Products cumulatively totaling two hundred and fifty Million dollars (US$250,000,000) $1,500,000. In
addition, a low single digit annual royalty, between 2-5%, on sales is also due should ghrelin be approved for treatment of
concussions in any market. The license is currently in good standing.

License for SUN11031

SUN11031 (designated as OXEL03 by Oxeia), is a ghrelin molecule that was originally developed by Daiichi Sankyo Co. Ltd.
(“Daiichi Sankyo™) and subsequently transferred to BioPharma Forest, Inc. ("BPF”). In February 2016, BPF entered into a
license agreement (the "BPF License Agreement”) with KineMed, Inc. ("KineMed™), pursuant to which BPF licensed certain
patents and other intellectual property and assets related to SUN 11031 to KineMed.

In February 2016, we entered into amendment no. 2 to Gastheos license agreement with Gastheos Pharma, Inc.
(“Gastheos™), as legal successor to BPF, pursuant to which we acquired the rights to purchase OXE103 from Gastheos (or its
supplier, Daiichi Sankyo) in sufficient quantities to enable us to successfully complete our Phase 2 clinical studies with data
sufficient to support a subsequent financing to fund a Phase 3 study. In connection with Amendment no. 2 to the Gastheos
license agreement, we issued Gastheos a warrant to purchase 250,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of
$0.18. The fair value at issuance was determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The warrant terms are based on
clinical development and financial milestones. A milestone was achieved in 2020 and 50% of the warrant vested. The license
also includes a low single digit annual sales royalty upon commercialization and an option to purchase clinical drug supply
from pre-existing lots. In addition, we agreed to pay Gastheos $0.1 million and $0.6 million upon successful completion of
the IND and Phase 2 milestones (or, if earlier, upon our initiation of a registrational Phase 3 study for the licensed product).



In May 2017, in connection with KineMed's voluntary bankruptey case under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptey Code, we
entered into an assumption and assignment agreement with BPF and KineMed, pursuant to which KineMed agreed to assign
all of its right, title and interest under the BPF License Agreement to us. Concurrently therewith, we entered into an
amendment to the BPF License Agreement, pursuant to which obtained an exclusive license for the field of concussion and
traumatic brain injury, and COVID-19 related applications in all geographies excluding Japan and South Korea. The license
requires us to make certain milestone payments to BPF as follows: (i) $0.1 million shall be paid within ninety days of the
FDA’s acceptance of the first IND in each licensee indication; (ii) an additional $0.5 million shall be paid within ninety days
of successful completion of the first proof-of-principle clinical trial in each licensee indication; and (iii) an additional $2
million shall be paid within ninety days following successful approval by the FDA of a new drug application for the sale and
marketing of the compound in each licensee indication.

In September 2021, we entered into amendment no. 3 to Gastheos license agreement with Gastheos, pursuant to which the
licensed territories were expanded to all countries of the World except Japan, South Korea and Taiwan and the licensed
indications were expanded to include the treatment of Long COVID. In connection with amendment no. 3 to Gastheos
license agreement, we agreed to pay Gastheos an additional license fee of either (i) $0.1 million within five days of our
completion of a private round of financing of $2 million or more; or (ii) $0.15 million within five days of our completion of
an initial public offering of our common stock, or ten days prior to the consummation of a change of control transaction or
comparable SUN 11031 out-licensing transaction. As part of this agreement, we issued a warrant to Gastheos to purchase of
250,000 shares of common stock, for an exercise price equal to $0.76 per share or 30.1 million which is recorded as research
and development warrant expense,

The license may be terminated if we fail to commence a proof-of-concept clinical study in TBI within two years from the
date that our IND for such indication is accepted by the FDA, or if we fail to have an active indication under the license
agreement for a period of ninety days or more. The license is currently in good standing.

Intellectual Property - Patents

We have developed a patent strategy to support commercialization of OXE103 for concussion, also known as mild
Traumatic Brain Injury (mTBI). OXE103 incorporates human ghrelin and as such its structure occurs naturally. Intellectual
property protection for our pharmaceutical development programs includes patents on medical uses in mTEBI, dosing
regimens and timing of delivery. We have filed three patent families. The first patent family contains four patents from the
Regents of the University of California ("UC™) that Oxeia is the exclusive license holder of and has worldwide patent rights
to. These patents have been issued and will expire in 2034. The remaining two patent families are pending and were filed by
Oxeia. They will expire in 2040 and 2043. Oxeia will continue to file patents, as we generate additional data that supports
new intellectual property, in areas such as formulations, manufacturing processes, and clinical data. All of Oxeia’s patent
applications have been filed internationally, some country specific patents have been issued and others are in various stages
of patent review.

Competitors and Industry

Oxeia operates within the neurclogical therapeutics industry, a rapidly evolving sector with significant unmet needs. In the
United States, approximately 7-21 million cases of concussion, also called mild traumatic brain injury (mTBI), occur
annually in the US. The range of concussion incidence is wide because many concussions go unreported. Approximately
20% of concussions, representing 1.4 - 4.2M patients experience persistent post-concussion symptoms. We believe this
large number of concussion sufferers represents a multi-billion-dollar annual market opportunity. Despite the high
prevalence and burden, there are currently no FDA-approved pharmacologic treatments specifically for persistently
symptomatic patients. Standard of Care is limited to rest, various forms of cognitive, visual and physical therapy and a
eradual return to activity. Competition in the broader neurology field includes companies developing therapies for more
severe forms of traumatic brain injury (TBI) and related neuropsychiatric disorders.Oxeia differentiates itself by targeting
the underlying neurometabolic and connectivity deficits of concussion with clinical evidence of a treatment effect in a
Phase 2a study and a substantial preclinical and clinical safety database.

Current Stage and Roadmap

Oxeia is currently in the late clinical development stage with OXE103, having completed a Phase 2a proof-of-concept trial
that demonstrated statistically significant improvements in symptom burden and quality of life for patients with persistent
post-concussion symptoms. The Company plans to initiate a statistically powered, randomized, double-blind, placebo-
controlled Phase 2b study enrolling 160 patients, with the primary endpoint, the Post Concussion Symptom Scale (PCSS).
Key near-term milestones include completing PCSS endpoint FDA validation, securing funding for Phase 2b initiation, and
conducting a Type C FDA meeting. Over the next 24-30 months, Oxeia aims to achieve Phase Zb top-line results,
potentially enabling Breakthrough Therapy Designation and positioning the program for Phase 3 studies or strategic
partnerships. Long-term, the Company envisions expanding OXE103"s clinical applications to other neurological and
mental health conditions with similar pathophysiology, leveraging its ample drug supply and established safety profile.

This roadmap reflects our current development plans and expectations and is subject to change based on clinical results,
FDA feedback, funding availability, and other factors. Any references to potential rezulatory designations or future
indications are forward-looking and there can be no assurance that such outcomes will be achieved.



The Team
Officers and Directors

Name: Michael Steven Wyand
Michael Steven Wyand's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

* Position: Chief Executive Officer, Principal Accounting Officer, Director
Dates of Service: June, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Responsibilities managing the development of Oxeia’s concussion assets. Including responsibilities
for fund raising, intellectual property, clinical development and company operations.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Mabloc Inc.
Title: Advisor and Interim CEQ

Dates of Service: August, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: Advise on development of monoclonal antibodies

Name: Teofilo David Raad
Teofilo David Raad's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

& Position: Director
Dates of Service: January, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Board Director

Other business experience in the past three years:

® Emplover: Pulmatrix (NASDAQ: PULM)
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Dates of Service: May, 2019 - July, 2024
Responsibilities: Chief Executive Officer and Board Director

Other business experience in the past three years:

& Emplover: Raad Biotech Solutions
Title: Residential Advisor

Dates of Service: March, 2025 - Present
Responsibilities: | provide real estate advisory services as an agent for clients buying or selling real estate,

Name: Kartik Kiran Shah
Kartik Kiran Shah's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Board Member
Dates of Service: June, 2014 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of Board of Directors and Co-Founder

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Emplover: Atara Biotherapeutics
Title: Senior Director, Business Development and Commercial Strategy
Dates of Service: April, 2019 - April, 2024
Responsibilities: Led commercial strategy and related business development activities.



Other business experience in the past three years:

= Emplovyer: Tactile Therapeutics
Title: Chief Business Officer

Dates of Service: April, 2024 - Present
Responsibilities: Lead all day-to-day operations and corporate strategy.

Name: Alex Smith
Alex Smith's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

* Position: Board Member
Dates of Service: November, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of Board of Directors

Other business experience in the past three years:

& Emplover: ESPN
Title: NFL Analyst

Dates of Service: July, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Sunday and Monday NFL Countdown

Other business experience in the past three years:

= Emplover: Section Partners
Title: Venture Partner
Dates of Service: March, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Deal sourcing and diligence, marketing, fundraising etc.

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its financial condition. The company is
still subject to all the same risks that all companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to, These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and technological developments (such as
hacking and the ability to prevent hacking). Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more
developed companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Our product candidate’s commercial viability remains subject to future clinical trials, regulatory approvals, and the risks
generally inherent in the development of a pharmaceutical product candidate.
Mo additional description.

Our product candidate may exhibit undesirable side effects when used alone or in combination with other approved
pharmaceutical products or investigational new drugs, which may delay or preclude further development or regulatory
approval or limit their use if approved.

Mo additional description.

If the results of our clinical trials for our product candidate are unfavorable or delayved, we could be delayed or precluded
from the further development or commercialization of our product candidate, which could materially harm our business.
No additional description.

If third party vendors upon whom we intend to rely on to conduct our clinical trials do not perform or fail to comply with
strict regulations, these studies or trials of our product candidate may be delayed, terminated, or fail, or we could incur
significant additional expenses, which could materially harm our business.

No additional description.

We, and our collaborators, if any, must comply with extensive government regulations in order to advance our product
candidates through the development process and ultimately obtain and maintain marketing approval for our products in the
U.5. and abroad.

Clinical trials involve a lengthy and expensive process with an uncertain outcome, and results of earlier studies and trials
may not be predictive of future trial results. Delays in clinical testing could result in increased costs to us and delay our
ability to generate revenue. The regulatory approval processes of the FDA and comparable foreign authorities are lengthy,



time consuming and inherently unpredictable, and if we are ultimately unable to obtain regulatory approval for our product
candidates, our business will be substantially harmed.

We may be required to suspend or discontinue clinical trials due to unexpected side effects or other safety risks that could
preclude approval of our product candidates.
No additional description.

If we fail to comply with healthcare regulations, we could face substantial enforcement actions, including civil and criminal
penalties and our business, operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.
If we are unable to satisfy regulatory requirements, we may not be able to commercialize our product candidate.

If our product candidate is unable to compete effectively with marketed drugs targeting similar indications as our product
candidates, our commercial opportunity will be reduced or eliminated.
Mo additional description.

If the manufacturers upon whom we rely fail to produce our product candidates, in the volumes that we require on a timely
basis, or fail to comply with stringent regulations applicable to pharmaceutical drug manufacturers, we may face delays in
the development and commercialization of our product candidates.

No additional description.

Our product candidate, if approved for sale, may not gain acceptance among physicians, patients, and the medical
community, thereby limiting our potential to generate revenues.
Guidelines and recommendations published by various organizations can impact the use of our products.

If a product liability claim is successfully brought against us for uninsured liabilities, or such claim exceeds our insurance
coverage, we could be forced to pay substantial damage awards that could materially harm our business.
Mo additional description.

We may delay or terminate the development of our product candidate at any time if we believe the perceived market or
commercial opportunity does not justify further investment, which could materially harm our business.
Mo additional description.

We are a clinical stage company and may never earn a profit.

We are a clinical stage company and have incurred losses since our formation. To date, we have experienced negative cash
flow from development of our product candidate, OXE103. We have not generated any revenue from operations, and we
expect to incur substantial net losses for the foreseeable future as we seek to further develop and commercialize OXE1035.
We cannot predict the extent of these future net losses, or when we may attain profitability, if ever. If we are unable to
generate significant revenue from OXE103 or attain profitability, we will not be able to sustain operations. Because of the
numerous risks and uncertainties associated with developing and commercializing OXE103, we are unable to predict the
extent of any future losses or when we will attain profitability, if ever. We may never become profitable and vou may never
receive a return on an investment in our common stock. An investor in our common stock must carefully consider the
substantial challenges, risks and uncertainties inherent in the attempted development and commercialization of OXE103,
We may never successfully commercialize OXE103, and our business may not be successful. We will need to raise
substantial additional capital to develop and commercialize OXE103, and our failure to obtain funding when needed may
force us to delay, reduce or eliminate our product development programs or collaboration efforts. If we do not obtain
adequate and timely funding, we may not be able to continue as a going concern.

We will be required to raise additional capital to complete the development and commercialization of our product
candidates.

We have historically relied upon private sales of our equity as well as debt financings to fund our operations. In order to
raise additional capital, we may seek to sell additional equity and/or debt securities, obtain a credit facility or other loan or
enter into collaborations, licenses or other similar arrangements, which we may not be able to do on favorable terms, or at
all. Our ability to obtain additional financing will be subject to a number of factors, including market conditions, our
operating performance and investor sentiment. If we are unable to raise additional capital when required or on acceptable
terms, we may have to significantly delay, scale back or discontinue the development and/or commercialization of our
product candidate, restrict our operations or obtain funds by entering into agreements on unfavorable terms. Failure to
obtain additional capital at acceptable terms would result in a material and adverse impact on our operations. As a result,
there is substantial doubt about our ability to operate as a going concern,.

Our financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any adjustments that may result
from the outcome of this uncertainty.

If we fail to raise additional working capital, or do s0 on commercially unfavorable terms, it would materially and adversely
affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations, and we may be unable to continue as a going
concern. If we seek additional financing to fund our business activities in the future and there remains substantial doubt
ahout our ahility to continue as a going concern, investors or other financing sources may be unwilling to provide additional
funding to us on commercially reasonable terms, if at all. If we are unable to continue as a going concern, we might have to
liquidate our assets and the value we receive for our assets in liquidation or dissolution could be significantly lower than the



values reflected in our financial statements, and our shareholders may lose their entire investment in our ordinary shares.

Our product candidate’s commercial viability remains subject to current and future clinical trials, regulatory approvals, and
the risks generally inherent in the development of a pharmaceutical product candidate.
If we are unable to successfully advance or develop our product candidate, our business will be materially harmed.

In the near-term, failure to successfully advance the development of our product candidate may have a material adverse
effect on us.

To date, we have not successtully developed or commercially marketed, distributed, or sold any product candidate, The
success of our business depends primarily upon our ability to successfully advance the development of our current and
future product candidates through preclinical studies and clinical trials, have the product candidates approved for sale by
the FDA or regulatory authorities in other countries, and ultimately have the product candidates successfully
commercialized by us or a commercial partner. We cannot assure you that the results of our clinical trials will support or
justify the continued development of our product candidate, or that we will receive approval from the FDA, or similar
regulatory authorities in other countries, to advance the development of our product candidates.

Our product candidates must satisfy rigorous regulatory standards of safety and efficacy before we can advance or complete
their clinical development, or they can be approved for sale.

To satisfy these standards, we must engage in expensive and lengthy clinical trials, develop acceptable manufacturing
processes, and obtain regulatory approval. Despite these efforts, our product candidates may not: offer therapeutic or other
medical benefits over existing drugs or other product candidates in development to treat the same patient population; be
proven to be safe and effective in current and future clinical trials; have the desired effects; be free from undesirable or
unexpected effects; meet applicable regulatory standards; be capable of being formulated and manufactured in
commercially suitable quantities and at an acceptable cost; or be successfully commercialized by us or by collaborators. We
cannot assure you that the results of late-stage clinical trials will be favorable enough to support the continued
development of our product candidates. A number of companies in the pharmaceutical and biopharmaceutical industries
have experienced significant delays, setbacks and failures in all stages of development, including late-stage clinical trials,
even after achieving promising results in early-stage clinical trials. Accordingly, results from completed early-stage clinical
trials of our product candidates may not be predictive of the results we may obtain in later-stage trials. Furthermore, even if
the data collected from clinical trials involving our product candidates demonstrate a favorable safety and efficacy profile,
such results may not be sufficient to support the submission of an NDA to obtain regulatory approval from the FDA in the
L.5., or other similar regulatory agencies in other jurisdictions, which is required to market and sell the product. Our
product candidate may exhibit undesirable side effects when used alone or in combination with other approved
pharmaceutical products or investigational new drugs, which may delay or preclude further development or regulatory
approval or limit their use if approved.

Throughout the drug development process, we must continually demonstrate the safety and tolerability of our product
candidate to obtain regulatory approval to further advance clinical development or to market them.

Even if our product candidate demonstrates clinical efficacy, any unacceptable adverse side effects or toxicities, when
administered alone or in the presence of other pharmaceutical products, which can arise at any stage of development, may
outweigh potential benefits. In preclinical studies and clinical trials we have conducted to date, our product candidate's
tolerability profile is based on studies and trials that have involved a small number of subjects or patients over a limited
period of time. We may observe adverse or significant adverse events or drug-drug interactions in future clinical trial
candidates, which could result in the delay or termination of development, prevent regulatory approval, or limit market
acceptance if ultimately approved. Raising additional capital may cause dilution to our existing stockholders, including
purchasers of common stock in this offering, restrict our operations or require us to relinguish rights to our product
candidates on unfavorable terms to us. We may seek additional capital through a variety of means, including through public
or private equity, debt financings or other sources, including up-front payments and milestone payments from strategic
collaborations. To the extent that we raise additional capital through the sale of equity or convertible debt or equity
securities, vour ownership interest will be diluted, and the terms may include liquidation or other preferences that adversely
affect your rights as a stockholder. Such financing may result in dilution to stockholders, imposition of debt covenants,
increased fixed payment obligations or other restrictions that may affect our business. If we raise additional funds through
up-front payments or milestone payments pursuant to strategic collaborations with third parties, we may have to relinguish
valuable rights to our product candidates or grant licenses on terms that are not favorable to us. In addition, we may seek
additional capital due to favorable market conditions or strategic considerations even if we believe we have sufficient funds
for our current or future operating plans. If the results of clinical trials for our product candidate are unfavorable or delayed,
we could be delaved or precluded from the further development or commercialization of our product candidate, which could
materially harm our business. In order to further advance the development of, and ultimately receive regulatory approval to
sell, our product candidate, we must conduct extensive clinical trials to demonstrate their safety and efficacy to the
satisfaction of the FDA or similar regulatory authorities in other countries, as the case mav be. Clinical trials are expensive,
complex, can take many years to complete, and have highly uncertain outcomes. Delays, setbacks, or failures can occur at
any time, or in any phase or clinical testing, and can result from concerns about safety or toxicity, a lack of demonstrated
efficacy or superior efficacy over other similar products that have been approved for sale or are in more advanced stages of
development, poor study or trial design, and issues related to the formulation or manufacturing process of the materials
used to conduct the trials. The results of prior clinical trials are not necessarily predictive of the results we may observe in



later stage clinical trials. In many cases, product candidates in clinical development may fail to show desired safety and
efficacy characteristics despite having favorably demonstrated such characteristics in preclinical studies or earlier stage
clinical trials. In addition, we may experience numerous unforeseen events during, or as a result of, the clinical trial process,
which could delay or impede our ability to advance the development of, receive regulatory approval for, or commercialize
our product candidate, including, but not limited to: communications with the FDA, or similar regulatory authorities in
different countries, regarding the scope or design of a trial or trials; regulatory authorities, including an Institutional
Review Board ("IRB™) or Ethical Committee ("EC™), not authorizing us to commence or conduct a clinical trial at a
prospective trial site; enrollment in our clinical trials being delayed, or proceeding at a slower pace than we expected,
because we have difficulty recruiting patients or participants dropping out of our clinical trials at a higher rate than we
anticipated; our third-party contractors, upon whom we rely for conducting clinical trials and manufacturing of our trial
materials, may fail to comply with regulatory requirements or meet their contractual obligations to us in a timely manner;
having to suspend or ultimately terminate our clinical trials if participants are being exposed to unacceptable health or
safety risks; IRBs, ECs, or regulators requiring that we hold, suspend or terminate our clinical trials for various reasons,
including non-compliance with regulatory requirements; and the supply or quality of drug material necessary to conduct
our clinical trials being insufficient, inadequate, or unavailable.

We, and our collaborators, if any, must comply with extensive government regulations in order to advance our product
candidates through the development process and ultimately obtain and maintain marketing approval for our products in the
U.5. and abroad.

The product candidate that we are developing or others that we may develop in the future require regulatory approval to
advance through clinical development and to ultimately be marketed and sold and are subject to extensive and rigorous
domestic and foreign government regulation. In the U.S., the FDA regulates, among other things, the development, testing,
manufacture, safety, efficacy, record-keeping, labeling, storage, approval, advertising, promotion, sale, and distribution of
pharmaceutical and biopharmaceutical products. Our product candidates are also subject to similar regulation by foreign
governments to the extent we seek to develop or market them in those countries. We must provide the FDA and foreign
regulatory authorities, if applicable, with clinical data, as well as data supporting an acceptable manufacturing process, that
appropriately demonstrate our product candidate’s safety and efficacy before it can be approved for the targeted
indications. Our product candidate has not been approved for sale in the U.S. or any foreign market, and we cannot predict
whether we will obtain regulatory approval for any product candidates we are developing or plan to develop. The regulatory
review and approval process can take many vears, is dependent upon the type, complexity, novelty of, and medical need for
the product candidate, requires the expenditure of substantial resources, and involves post-marketing surveillance and
vigilance and potentially post-marketing studies or Phase 4 clinical trials. In addition, we may encounter delays in, or fail to
gain, regulatory approval for our product candidate based upon additional governmental regulation resulting from future
legislative, administrative action or changes in FDA's or other similar foreign regulatory authorities’ policy or interpretation
during the period of product development. Delays or failures in obtaining regulatory approval to advance our product
candidate through clinical development, and ultimately commercialize them, may: adversely impact our ability to raise
sufficient capital to fund the development of our product candidates; adversely affect our ability to further develop or
commercialize our product candidates; diminish any competitive advantages that we or our collaborators may have or
attain; and adversely affect the receipt of potential milestone payments and rovalties from collaborators, if any, from the
sale of our products or product revenues in the future.

Furthermore, any regulatory approvals, if granted, may later be withdrawn.

If we or our collaborators fail to comply with applicable regulatory requirements at any time, or if post-approval safety
concerns arise, we or our collaborators may be subject to restrictions or a number of actions, including: delays, suspension,
or termination of clinical trials related to our products; refusal by regulatory authorities to review pending applications or
supplements to approved applications; product recalls or seizures; suspension of manufacturing; withdrawals of previously
approved marketing applications; and fines, civil penalties, and criminal prosecutions. Additionally, at any time we or our
collaborators may voluntarily suspend or terminate the clinical development of a product candidate, or withdraw any
approved product from the market if we believe that it may pose an unacceptable safety risk to patients, or if the product
candidate or approved product no longer meets our business objectives. The ability to develop or market a pharmaceutical
product outside of the U.5. is contingent upon receiving appropriate authorization from the respective foreign regulatory
authorities. Foreign regulatory approval processes typically include many, if not all, of the risks and requirements
associated with the FDA regulatory process for drug development and may include additional risks.

Clinical trials involve a lengthy and expensive process with an uncertain outcome, and results of earlier studies and trials
may not be predictive of future trial results.

Our product candidate may not prove to be safe and efficacious in clinical trials and may not meet all the applicable
regulatory requirements needed to receive regulatory approval. In order to receive regulatory approval for the
commercialization of our product candidates, we must conduct, at our own expense, extensive clinical trials to demonstrate
safety and efficacy of our product candidate for the intended indication of use. Clinical testing is expensive, can take many
years to complete, if at all, and its outcome is uncertain. Failure can occur at any time during the clinical trial process. The
results of early clinical trials of new drugs do not necessarily predict the results of later-stage clinical trials. The design of
our clinical trials is based on many assumptions about the expected effects of our product candidate, and if those
assumptions are incorrect, they may not produce statistically significant results. Preliminary results may not be confirmed
on full analysis of the detailed results of a clinical trial. Product candidates in later stages of clinical development may fail



to show safety and efficacy sufficient to support intended use claims despite having progressed through earlier clinical
testing. The data collected from clinical trials of our product candidate may not be sufficient to support the filing of an NDA
or to obtain regulatory approval in the United States or elsewhere. Because of the uncertainties associated with drug
development and regulatory approval, we cannot determine if or when we will have an approved product for
commercialization or achieve sales or profits.

Delays in clinical testing could result in increased costs to us and delay our ability to generate revenue.

We may experience delays in clinical testing of our product candidate. We do not know whether planned clinical trials will
begin on time, will need to be redesigned or will be completed on schedule, if at all. Clinical trials can be delayed for a
variety of reasons, including pandemics, delays in obtaining regulatory approval to commence a clinical trial, in securing
clinical trial agreements with prospective sites with acceptable terms, in obtaining IRB approval to conduct a clinical trial at
a prospective site, in recruiting patients to participate in a clinical trial or in obtaining sufficient supplies of clinical trial
materials, including OXE103. Many factors affect patient enrollment, including the size of the patient population, the
proximity of patients to clinical sites, the eligibility criteria for the clinical trial, the existing body of safety and efficacy data
with respect to the study drug, competing clinical trials, new drugs approved for the conditions we are investigating and
health epidemics such as the COVID-19 pandemic. Clinical investigators will need to decide whether to offer their patients
enrollment in clinical trials of our product candidate versus treating these patients with commercially available drugs that
have established safety and efficacy profiles. Any delays in completing our clinical trials will increase our costs, slow down
our product development, timeliness and approval process and delay our ability to generate revenue.

The regulatory approval processes of the FDA and comparable foreign authorities are lengthy, time consuming and
inherently unpredictable, and it we are ultimately unable to obtain regulatory approval for our product candidates, our
business will be substantially harmed.

The time required to obtain approval by the FDA and comparable foreign authorities is unpredictable but typically takes
many years following the commencement of clinical trials and depends upon numerous factors, including the substantial
discretion of the regulatory authorities. In addition, approval policies, regulations, or the type and amount of clinical data
necessary to gain approval may change during the course of a product candidate’s clinical development and may vary
among jurisdictions. We have not obtained regulatory approval for any product candidate and it is possible that our existing
product candidate or any product candidate we may seek to develop in the future will ever obtain regulatory approval may
fail to receive regulatory approval. Our product candidate could fail to receive regulatory approval for many reasons,
including the following: the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities may disagree with the design or
implementation of our clinical trials; we may be unable to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the FDA or comparable foreign
regulatory authorities that a product candidate is safe and effective for its proposed indication; the results of clinical trials
may not meet the level of statistical significance required for approval by the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory
authorities; the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities may disagree with our interpretation of data from
preclinical studies or clinical trials; the data collected from clinical trials of our product candidates may not be sufficient to
support the submission of an NDA or other submission or to obtain regulatory approval in the United States or elsewhere;
the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities may fail to approve the manufacturing processes or facilities of third-
party manufacturers with which we contract for clinical and commercial supplies; and the approval policies or regulations
of the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities may significantly change in a manner rendering our clinical data
insufficient for approval. This lengthy approval process as well as the unpredictability of future clinical trial results may
result in our failing to obtain regulatory approval to market our product candidates, which would significantly harm our
business, results of operations and prospects.

In addition, even if we were to obtain approval, regulatory authorities may approve our product candidates for fewer or
more limited indications than we request, may grant approval contingent on the performance of costly post-marketing
clinical trials, or may approve a product candidate with a label that does not include the labeling claims necessary or
desirable for the successful commercialization of that product candidate. Any of the foregoing scenarios could materially
harm the commercial prospects for our product candidate.

We have not previously submitted an NDA to the FDA, nor similar drug approval filings to comparable foreign authorities,
for our product candidate, and we cannot be certain that our product candidate will be successful in clinical trials or receive
regulatory approval. Further, our product candidate may not receive regulatory approval even if they are successful in
clinical trials. If we do not receive regulatory approvals for our product candidate, we may not be able to continue our
operations. Even if we successfully obtain regulatory approvals to market our product candidate, our revenues will be
dependent on many factors including the size of the markets in the territories for which we gain regulatory approval and
have commercial rights. If the markets for patients that we are targeting for our product candidates are not as significant as
we estimate, we may not generate significant revenues from sales of such products, if approved. We plan to seek regulatory
approval and to commercialize our product candidate, directly or with collaborators in the United States, the European
Union, and other foreign countries which we have not yet identified. While the scope of regulatory approval is similar in
other countries, to obtain separate regulatory approval in many other countries we must comply with numerous and varying
regulatory requirements of such countries regarding safety and efficacy and governing, among other things, clinical trials
and commercial sales, pricing, and distribution of our product candidates, and we cannot predict success in these
jurisdictions.

We may be required to suspend or discontinue clinical trials due to unexpected side effects or other safety risks that could



preclude approval of our product candidates.

Our clinical trials may be suspended at any time for a number of reasons. For example, we may voluntarily suspend or
terminate our clinical trials if at any time we believe that they present an unacceptable risk to the clinical trial patients. In
addition, the FDA or other regulatory agencies may order the temporary or permanent discontinuation of our clinical trials
at any time if they believe that the clinical trials are not being conducted in accordance with applicable regulatory
requirements or that they present an unacceptable safety risk to the clinical trial patients. Administering our product
candidate to humans may produce undesirable side effects. These side effects could interrupt, delay or halt clinical trials of
our product candidates and could result in the FDA or other regulatory authorities denying further development or approval
of our product candidate for any or all targeted indications. Ultimately, our product candidates may prove to be unsafe for
human use. Moreover, we could be subject to significant liability if any volunteer or patient suffers, or appears to suffer,
adverse health effects as a result of participating in our clinical trials.

If we fail to comply with healthcare regulations, we could face substantial enforcement actions, including civil and criminal
penalties and our business, operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

As a developer of pharmaceuticals, certain federal and state healthcare laws and regulations pertaining to fraud and abuse,
false claims and patients’ privacy rights are and will be applicable to our business. We could be subject to healthcare fraud
and abuse laws and patient privacy laws of both the federal government and the states in which we conduct our business.
The laws include: the federal healthcare program anti-kickback law, which prohibits, among other things, persons from
soliciting, receiving or providing remuneration, directly or indirectly, to induce either the referral of an individual, for an
item or service or the purchasing or ordering of a good or service, for which payment may be made under federal healthcare
programs such as the Medicare and Medicaid programs; federal false claims laws which prohibit, among other things,
individuals, or entities from knowingly presenting, or causing to be presented, claims for payment from Medicare, Medicaid,
or other third-party payors that are false or fraudulent, and which may apply to entities like us which provide coding and
billing information to customers; the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, which prohibits
executing a scheme to defraud any healthcare benefit program or making false statements relating to healthcare matters
and which also imposes certain requirements relating to the privacy, security and transmission of individually identifiable
health information; the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, which among other things, strictly regulates drug
manufacturing and product marketing, prohibits manufacturers from marketing drug products for off-label use and
regulates the distribution of drug samples; and state law equivalents of each of the above federal laws, such as anti-kickback
and false claims laws which may apply to items or services reimbursed by any third-party payor, including commercial
insurers, and state laws governing the privacy and security of health information in certain circumstances, many of which
differ from each other in significant ways and often are not preempted by federal laws, thus complicating compliance
efforts. If our operations are found to be in violation of any of the laws described above or any governmental regulations
that apply to us, we may be subject to penalties, including civil and criminal penalties, damages, fines, and the curtailment
or restructuring of our operations. Any penalties, damages, fines, curtailment or restructuring of our operations could
adversely affect our ability to operate our business and our financial results. Although compliance programs can mitigate
the risk of investigation and prosecution for violations of these laws, the risks cannot be entirely eliminated. Any action
against us for violation of these laws, even if we successfully defend against it, could cause us to incur significant legal
expenses and divert management’s attention from the operation of our business. Moreover, achieving and sustaining
compliance with applicable federal and state privacy, security and fraud laws may prove costly.

[f we are unable to satisfy regulatory requirements, we may not be able to commercialize our product candidate.

We need FDA approval prior to marketing our product candidate in the United States. If we fail to obtain FDA approval to
market our product candidates, we will be unable to sell our product candidates in the United States and we will not
generate any revenue. The FDA's review and approval process, including among other things, evaluation of preclinical
studies and clinical trials of a product candidate as well as the manufacturing process and facility, is lengthy, expensive, and
uncertain. To receive approval, we must, among other things, demonstrate with substantial evidence from well-designed
and well-controlled pre-clinical testing and clinical trials that the product candidates are both safe and effective for each
indication for which approval is sought. Satisfaction of these requirements typically takes several years, and the time
needed to satisfy them may vary substantially, based on the type, complexity and novelty of the pharmaceutical product.
We cannot predict if or when we will submit an NDA for approval for our product candidate currently under development.
Any approvals we may obtain may not cover all of the clinical indications for which we are seeking approval or may contain
significant limitations on the conditions of use. The FDA has substantial discretion in the NDA review process and may
either refuse to file our NDA for substantive review or may decide that our data is insufficient to support approval of our
product candidates for the claimed intended uses. Following any regulatory approval of our product candidates, we will be
subject to continuing regulatory obligations such as safety reporting, required and additional post marketing obligations,
and regulatory oversight of promotion and marketing. Even if we receive regulatory approvals, the FDA may subsequently
seek to withdraw approval of our NDA if we determine that new data or a reevaluation of existing data show the product is
unsafe for use under the conditions of use upon the basis of which the NDA was approved, or based on new evidence of
adverse effects or adverse clinical experience, or upon other new information. If the FDA does not file or approve our NDA
or withdraws approval of our NDA, the FDA may require that we conduct additional clinical trials or manufacturing studies
and submit that data before it will reconsider our application. Depending on the extent of these or any other requested
studies, approval of any applications that we submit may be delayed by several years, may require us to expend more
resources than we have available, or may never be obtained at all. We will also be subject to a wide variety of foreign
regulations governing the development, manufacture, and marketing of our products to the extent we seek regulatory



approval to develop and market our product candidates in a foreign jurisdiction. As of the date hereof we have not identified
any foreign jurisdictions which we intend to seek approval from. Whether or not FDA approval has been obtained, approval
of a product candidate by the comparable regulatory authorities of foreign countries must still be obtained prior to
marketing the product candidate in those countries. The approval process varies, and the time needed to secure approval in
any region such as the European Union or in a country with an independent review procedure may be longer or shorter than
that required for FDA approval. We cannot assure you that clinical trials conducted in one country will be accepted by other
countries or that an approval in one country or region will result in approval elsewhere.

If our product candidate is unable to compete effectively with marketed drugs targeting similar indications as our product
candidates, our commercial opportunity will be reduced or eliminated.

We face competition generally from established pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, as well as from academic
institutions, government agencies and private and public research institutions. Many of our competitors have significantly
greater financial resources and expertise in research and development, manufacturing, conducting clinical trials, obtaining
regulatory approvals and marketing approved products than we do. Small or early-stage companies may also prove to be
significant competitors, particularly through collaborative arrangements with large, established companies. In addition, we
are aware of a number of companies in Phase 1 and Phase 2 clinical trials for the treatment of concussions more details of
which can be found in the section titled, "Competition.” Our commercial opportunity will be reduced or eliminated if our
competitors develop and commercialize any products that are safer, more effective, have fewer side effects or are less
expensive than our product candidate. These potential competitors compete with us in recruiting and retaining qualified
scientific and management personnel, establishing clinical trial sites, and patient enrollment for clinical trials, as well as in
acquiring technologies and technology licenses complementary to our programs or advantageous to our business. If
potential competitors are successful in completing drug development for their product candidates and obtain approval from
the FDA, they could limit the demand for OXE103. We expect that our ability to compete effectively will depend upon our
ability to: successfully identify and develop key points of product differentiation from currently available therapies;
successfully and timely complete clinical trials and submit for and obtain all requisite regulatory approvals in a cost-
effective manner; maintain a proprietary position for our products and manufacturing processes and other related product
technology; attract and retain key personnel; develop relationships with physicians prescribing these products; and build an
adequate sales and marketing infrastructure for our products, if approved. Because we will be competing against
significantly larger companies with established track records, we will have to demonstrate that, based on experience,
clinical data, side-effect profiles and other factors, our products, if approved, are competitive with other products. If we are
unable to compete effectively and differentiate our products from other marketed drugs, we may never generate meaningful
revenue.

We may expend our limited resources to pursue one or more product candidates or indications within our product
development strategy, which has and may continue to change over time, and fail to capitalize on product candidates or
indications that may be more profitable or for which there is a greater likelihood of success.

Because we have limited financial and managerial resources, we intend to focus on developing product candidates for
specific indications that we identify as most likely to succeed, in terms of their potential both to gain regulatory approval
and to achieve commercialization. As a result, we may forego or delay pursuit of opportunities with other product
candidates or in other indications with greater commercial potential. Our resource allocation decisions may cause us to fail
to capitalize on viable commercial products or profitable market opportunities. Our spending on current and future research
and development programs and product candidates for specific indications may not yield any commercially viable product
candidates. If we do not accurately evaluate the commercial potential or target market for a particular product candidate,
we may relinquish valuable rights to that product candidate through collaboration, licensing, or other royalty arrangements
in cases in which it would have been more advantageous for us to retain sole development and commercialization rights to
the product candidate. If the manufacturers upon whom we rely fail to produce our product candidates, in the volumes that
we require on a timely basis, or fail to comply with stringent regulations applicable to pharmaceutical drug manufacturers,
we may face delays in the development and commercialization of our product candidates. We do not currently possess
internal manufacturing capacity. We plan to utilize the services of GMP, FDA inspected contract manufacturers to
manufacture our clinical supplies. In addition, because regulatory authorities must generally approve raw material sources
for pharmaceutical products, changes in raw material suppliers may result in production delays or higher raw material costs.
We may be required to agree to minimum volume requirements, exclusivity arrangements or other restrictions with the
contract manufacturers. We may not be able to enter into long-term agreements on commercially reasonable terms, or at
all. If we change or add manufacturers, the FDA and comparable foreign regulators may require approval of the changes.
Approval of these changes could require new testing by the manufacturer and compliance inspections to ensure the
manufacturer is conforming to all applicable laws and regulations and GMP.

The manufacture of pharmaceutical products requires significant expertise and capital investment, including the
development of advanced manufacturing techniques and process controls.

Manufacturers of pharmaceutical products may encounter difficulties in production, particularly in scaling up production.
These problems include difficulties with production costs and yields, quality control, including stability of the product and
quality assurance testing, shortages of qualified personnel, as well as compliance with federal, state, and foreign
regulations. In addition, any delay or interruption in the supply of clinical trial supplies could delay the completion of our
clinical trials, increase the costs associated with conducting our clinical trials and, depending upon the period of delay,
require us to commence new clinical trials at significant additional expense or to terminate a clinical trial.



We will be responsible for ensuring that our future contract manufacturers comply with the GMP requirements of the FDA
and other regulatory authorities from which we seek to obtain product approval.

These requirements include, among other things, quality control, guality assurance and the maintenance of records and
documentation. The approval process for NDAs includes an inspection of the manufacturer’s compliance with GMP
requirements. We will be responsible for regularly assessing a contract manufacturer’s compliance with GMP requirements
through record reviews and periodic audits and for ensuring that the contract manufacturer takes responsibility and
corrective action for any identified deviations. Manufacturers of our product candidates may be unable to comply with these
GMP requirements and with other FDA and foreign regulatory requirements, if any. While we will oversee compliance of our
contract manufacturers, ultimately, we will not have control over our manufacturers’ compliance with these regulations and
standards. A failure to comply with these requirements may result in fines and civil penalties, suspension of production,
suspension or delay in product approval, product seizure or recall, or withdrawal of product approval. If the safety of our
product candidates is compromised due to a manufacturers’ failure to adhere to applicable laws or for other reasons, we may
not be able to obtain regulatory approval for or successfully commercialize our product candidates, and we may be held
liable for any injuries sustained as a result. Any of these factors could cause a delay of clinical trials, regulatory submissions,
approvals, or commercialization of OXE103 or other product candidates, entail higher costs or result in us being unable to
effectively commercialize our product candidates. Furthermore, if our manufacturers fail to deliver the required commercial
quantities on a timely basis and at commercially reasonable prices, we may be unable to meet demand for anv approved
products and would lose potential revenues.

We may not be able to manufacture our product candidates in commercial quantities, which would prevent us from
commercializing our product candidates.

To date, our product candidate has been manufactured in small quantities for preclinical studies and clinical trials. If our
product candidates are approved by the FDA or comparable regulatory authorities in other countries for commercial sale, we
will need to manufacture such product candidates in larger quantities. We may not be able to successfully increase the
manufacturing capacity for our product candidate in a timely or economic manner, or at all. Significant scale-up of
manufacturing may require additional validation studies, which the FDA must review and approve. If we are unable to
successfully increase the manufacturing capacity for a product candidate, the clinical trials as well as the regulatory
approval or commercial launch of that product candidate may be delayed or there may be a shortage in supply. Our product
candidate requires precise, high quality manufacturing. Our failure to achieve and maintain these high-quality
manufacturing standards in collaboration with our third-party manufacturers, including the incidence of manufacturing
errors, could result in patient injury or death, product recalls or withdrawals, delays or failures in product testing or
delivery, cost overruns or other problems that could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our product candidate, if approved for sale, may not gain acceptance among physicians, patients, and the medical
community, thereby limiting our potential to generate revenues.

If our product candidate is approved for commercial sale by the FDA or other regulatory authorities, the degree of market
acceptance of any approved product by physicians, healthcare professionals and third-party payors and our profitability and
growth will depend on a number of factors, including: demonstration of safety and efficacy; changes in the practice
guidelines and the standard of care for the targeted indication; relative convenience and ease of administration; the
prevalence and severity of any adverse side effects budget impact of adoption of our product on relevant drug formularies
and the availability, cost, and potential advantages of alternative treatments, including less expensive generic drugs;
pricing, reimbursement, and cost effectiveness, which may be subject to regulatory control; effectiveness of our or any of
our or our partners’ sales and marketing strategies; the product labeling or product insert required by the FDA or regulatory
authority in other countries; and the availability of adequate third-party insurance coverage or reimbursement.

If any product candidate that we develop does not provide a treatment regimen that is as beneficial as, or is perceived as
being as beneficial as, the current standard of care or otherwise does not provide patient benefit, that product candidate, if
approved for commercial sale by the FDA or other regulatory authorities, likely will not achieve market acceptance.

Our ability to effectively promote and sell any approved products will also depend on pricing and cost-effectiveness,
including our ability to produce a product at a competitive price and our ability to obtain sufficient third-party coverage or
reimbursement. If any product candidate is approved but does not achieve an adequate level of acceptance by physicians,
patients and third-party payors, our ability to generate revenues from that product would be substantially reduced. In
addition, our efforts to educate the medical community and third-party payors on the benefits of our product candidates
may require significant resources, may be constrained by FDA rules and policies on product promotion, and may never be
successful.

Guidelines and recommendations published by various organizations can impact the use of our products.

Government agencies promulgate regulations and guidelines directly applicable to us and to our product. In addition,
professional societies, practice management groups, private health and science foundations and organizations involved in
various diseases from time to time may also publish guidelines or recommendations to the healthcare and patient
communities. Recommendations of government agencies or these other groups or organizations may relate to such matters
as usage, dosage, route of administration and use of concomitant therapies. Recommendations or guidelines suggesting the
reduced use of our products or the use of competitive or alternative products that are followed by patients and healthcare
providers could result in decreased use of our proposed products.

If third-party contract manufacturers upon whom we rely to formulate and manufacture our product candidates do not



perform, fail to manufacture according to our specifications or fail to comply with strict regulations, our clinical trials could
be adversely affected and the development of our product candidate could be delayed or terminated or we could incur
significant additional expenses.

We do not own or operate any manufacturing facilities. We intend to rely on GMP, FDA inspected third-party contractors, at
least for the foreseeable future, to formulate and manufacture these clinical materials. Our reliance on third-party contract
manufacturers exposes us to a number of risks, any of which could delay or prevent the completion of our clinical trials, or
the regulatory approval or commercialization of our product candidate, result in higher costs, or deprive us of potential
product revenues. Some of these risks include: our third-party contractors failing to develop an acceptable formulation to
support later-stage clinical trials for, or the commercialization of, our product candidates; our contract manufacturers
failing to manufacture our product candidates according to their own standards, our specifications or Current Good
Manufacturing Practice (" cGMP™), or otherwise manufacturing material that we or the FDA may deem to be unsuitable in
our clinical trials; our contract manufacturers being unable to increase the scale of, increase the capacity for, or reformulate
the form of our product candidate. We may experience a shortage in supply, or the cost to manufacture our products may
increase to the point where it adversely affects the cost of our product candidates. We cannot assure you that our contract
manufacturers will be able to manufacture our product candidates at a suitable scale, or we will be able to find alternative
manufacturers acceptable to us that can do so; our contract manufacturers placing a priority on the manufacture of their
own products, or other customers’ products; our contract manufacturers failing to perform as agreed or not remaining in

the contract manufacturing business; and our contract manufacturers” plants being closed as a result of regulatory
sanctions or a natural disaster.

In the event that we need to change our third-party contract manufacturers, our clinical trials or the commercialization of
our product candidate could be delaved, adversely affected or terminated, or such a change may result in significantly
higher costs.

Due to regulatory restrictions inherent in an IND or NDA, or for economic reasons, various steps in the manufacture of our
product candidate may need to be sole-sourced. In accordance with cGMP regulations, changing manufacturers may require
the re-validation of manufacturing processes and procedures, and may require further clinical trials to show comparability
between the materials produced by different manufacturers. Changing our current or future contract manufacturers may be
difficult for us and could be costly, which could result in our inability to manufacture our product candidate for an extended
period of time and therefore a delay in the development of our product candidate. Further, in order to maintain our
development time lines in the event of a change in our third-party contract manufacturer, we may incur significantly higher
costs to manufacture our product candidate.

If a product liability claim is successfully brought against us for uninsured liabilities, or such claim exceeds our insurance
coverage, we could be forced to pay substantial damage awards that could materially harm our business.

The use of our existing or future product candidates in clinical trials and the sale of any approved pharmaceutical products
may expose us to significant product liability claims. We have product liability insurance coverage for our proposed clinical
trials; however, such insurance coverage may not protect us against any or all of the product liability claims that may be
brought against us now or in the future. We may not be able to acquire or maintain adequate product liability insurance
coverage at a commercially reasonable cost or in sufficient amounts or scope to protect us against potential losses. In the
event a product liability claim is brought against us, we may be required to pay legal and other expenses to defend the
claim, as well as uncovered damage awards resulting from a claim brought successfully against us. In the event our product
candidate is approved for sale by the FDA and commercialized, we may need to substantially increase the amount of our
product liability coverage. Defending any product liability claim or claims could require us to expend significant financial
and managerial resources, which could have an adverse effect on our business.

We may delay or terminate the development of our product candidate at any time if we believe the perceived market or
commercial opportunity does not justify further investment, which could materially harm our business.

Even though the results of preclinical studies and clinical trials that have been conducted or may be conducted in the future
may support further development of our product candidate, we may delay, suspend or terminate the future development of
a product candidate at any time for strategic, business, financial or other reasons, including the determination or belief that
the emerging profile of the product candidate is such that it may not receive FDA approval, gain meaningful market
acceptance, generate a significant return to shareholders, or otherwise provide any competitive advantages in its intended
indication or market. Our future success depends on our ability to retain our key personnel and to attract, retain and
motivate qualified personnel.

We are highly dependent on the development, regulatory, commercialization, and business development expertise of Dr,
Michael Wyand, our Chief Executive Officer, as well as the other principal members of our management, scientific and
clinical teams.

Although we have employment agreements, offer letters or consulting agreements with our executive officers, these
agreements do not prevent them from terminating their services at any time.

If we lose one or more of our executive officers or key employees, our ability to implement our business strategy
successfully could be seriously harmed.

Furthermore, replacing executive officers and key employees may be difficult and may take an extended period of time
because of the limited number of individuals in our industry with the breadth of skills and experience required to
successfully develop product candidates, gain regulatory approval, and commercialize new products. Competition to hire



from this limited pool is intense, and we may be unable to hire, train, retain or motivate these additional key personnel on
acceptable terms given the competition among numerous pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies for similar
personnel. We also experience competition for the hiring of scientific and clinical personnel from universities and research
institutions. In addition, we rely on consultants and advisors, including scientific and clinical advisors, to assist us in
formulating our research and development and commercialization strategy. Our consultants and advisors may be engaged
by entities other than us and may have commitments under consulting or advisory contracts with other entities that may
limit their availability to us. If we are unable to continue to attract and retain highly qualified personnel, our ability to
develop and commercialize product candidates will be limited.

We will need to increase the size of our organization, and we may experience difficulties in managing growth.

We are a virtual company with 2 full-time employees as of December 2025 and a fractional team of legal, finance,
regulatory, clinical, and quality consultants. Future growth of our company will impose significant additional
responsibilities on members of management, including the need to identify, attract, retain, motivate and integrate highly
skilled personnel. We may increase the number of employees in the future depending on the progress of our development
and commercialization of our product candidates. Our future financial performance and our ability to commercialize our
product candidate and to compete effectively will depend, in part, on our ability to manage any future growth effectively. To
that end, we must be able to: manage our clinical studies effectively; integrate additional management, administrative,
manufacturing, and regulatory personnel; maintain sufficient administrative, accounting and management information
systems and controls; and hire and train additional qualified personnel. There is no guarantee that we will be able to
accomplish these tasks, and our failure to accomplish any of them could materially adversely affect our business, prospects,
and financial condition.

Business disruptions could seriously harm future revenue and financial condition and increase our costs and expenses.
Our operations, and those of our third-party manufacturers, contract research organizations, or CROs, and other
contractors and consultants, could be subject to earthquakes, power shortages, telecommunications failures, water
shortages, floods, hurricanes, typhoons, fires, extreme weather conditions, medical epidemics and other natural or man-
made disasters or business interruptions, for which we are predominantly self-insured. The occurrence of any of these
business disruptions could seriously harm our operations and financial condition and increase our costs and expenses.
These and other natural disasters could severely disrupt our operations, and have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations, financial condition and prospects. If a natural disaster, power outage or other event occurred that
prevented us from using all or a significant portion of our headquarters, that damaged critical infrastructure, such as the
manufacturing facilities of our third-party contract manufacturers, or that otherwise disrupted operations, it may be
difficult or, in certain cases, impossible for us to continue our business for a substantial period of time. Any disaster
recovery and business continuity plans we have in place may prove inadequate in the event of a serious disaster or similar
event. We may incur substantial expenses as a result of the limited nature of our disaster recovery and business continuity
plans, which, could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Security threats to our information technology infrastructure and/or our physical buildings could expose us to liability and
damage our reputation and business.

[t is essential to our business strategy that our and our vendors, partners, clinical trial sites, and third-party providers’
technology and network infrastructure and physical buildings remain secure and are perceived by our customers and
corporate partners to be secure. Despite security measures, however, any network infrastructure may be vulnerable to
cyber-attacks by hackers and other security threats. We may face cyber-attacks that attempt to penetrate our network
security, sabotage, or otherwise disable our research and development activities, products and services, misappropriate our
or our customers’ and partners’ proprietary information, which may include personally identifiable information, or cause
interruptions of our internal systems and services. Despite security measures, we also cannot guarantee security of our
physical buildings. Physical building penetration or any cyber-attacks could negatively affect our reputation, damage our
network infrastructure and our ability to deploy our products and services, harm our relationship with customers and
partners that are affected, and expose us to financial liability. Additionally, there are a number of state, federal, and
international laws protecting the privacy and security of health information and personal data. For example, the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA™) imposes limitations on the use and disclosure of an
individual's healthcare information by healthcare providers, healthcare clearinghouses, and health insurance plans, or,
collectively, covered entities, and also grants individuals rights with respect to their health information. HIPAA also
imposes compliance obligations and corresponding penalties for non-compliance on individuals and entities that provide
services to healthcare providers and other covered entities. As part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009
("ARRA™), the privacy and security provisions of HIPAA were amended. ARRA also made significant increases in the
penalties for improper use or disclosure of an individual’s health information under HIPAA and extended enforcement
authority to state attorneys general. As amended by ARRA and subsequently by the final omnibus rule adopted in 2013,
HIPAA also imposes notification requirements on covered entities in the event that certain health information has been
inappropriately accessed or disclosed: notification requirements to individuals, federal regulators, and in some cases,
notification to local and national media. Notification is not required under HIPAA if the health information that is
improperly used or disclosed is deemed secured in accordance with encryption or other standards developed by the U.5.
Department of Health and Human Services. Most states have laws requiring notification of affected individuals and/or state
regulators in the event of a breach of personal information, which is a broader class of information than the health
information protected by HIPAA. Many state laws impose significant data security requirements, such as encryption or



mandatory contractual terms, to ensure ongoing protection of personal information. Activities outside of the U.S. implicate
local and national data protection standards, impose additional compliance requirements, and generate additional risks of
enforcement for non-compliance., We may be required to expend significant capital and other resources to ensure ongoing
compliance with applicable privacy and data security laws, to protect against security breaches and hackers or to alleviate
problems caused by such breaches. We and our third-party contract manufacturers must comply with environmental, health
and safety laws and regulations, and failure to comply with these laws and regulations could expose us to significant costs
or liabilities.

We and our third-party manufacturers are subject to numerous environmental, health and safety laws and regulations,
including those governing laboratory procedures and the use, generation, manufacture, distribution, storage, handling,
treatment, remediation and disposal of hazardous materials and wastes.

Hazardous chemicals, including flammable and biological materials, are involved in certain aspects of our business, and we
cannot eliminate the risk of injury or contamination from the use, generation, manufacture, distribution, storage, handling,
treatment or disposal of hazardous materials and wastes. In the event of contamination or injury, or failure to comply with
environmental, health and safety laws and regulations, we could be held liable for any resulting damages and any such
liability could exceed our assets and resources. We could also incur significant costs associated with civil or criminal fines
and penalties for failure to comply with such laws and regulations. Although we maintain workers' compensation insurance
to cover us for costs and expenses we may incur due to injuries to our employees resulting from the use of hazardous
materials, this insurance may not provide adequate coverage against potential liabilities. We do not maintain insurance for
environmental liability or toxic tort claims that may be asserted against us in connection with our storage or disposal of
biological, hazardous or radioactive materials. Environmental, health and safety laws and regulations are becoming
increasingly more stringent. We may incur substantial costs in order to comply with current or future environmental, health
and safety laws and regulations. These current or future laws and regulations may impair our research, development or
production efforts. Our failure to comply with these laws and regulations also may result in substantial fines, penalties or
other sanctions. Further, with respect to the operations of our third-party contract manufacturers, it is possible that if they
fail to operate in compliance with applicable environmental, health and safety laws and regulations or properly dispose of
wastes associated with our products, we could be held liable for any resulting damages, suffer reputational harm or
experience a disruption in the manufacture and supply of our product candidates or products.

A variety of risks associated with operating internationally could materially adversely affect our business.

Doing business internationally involves a number of risks, including but not limited to: multiple, conflicting and changing
laws and regulations, such as privacy regulations, tax laws, export and import restrictions, employment laws, regulatory
requirements and other governmental approvals, permits and licenses; failure by us to obtain and maintain regulatory
approvals for the use of our products in various countries; additional potentially relevant third-party patent rights;
complexities and difficulties in obtaining protection and enforcing our intellectual property difficulties in staffing and
managing foreign operations complexities associated with managing multiple payor reimbursement regimes, government
payors or patient self-pay systems; limits in our ability to penetrate international markets; financial risks, such as longer
payment cycles, difficulty collecting accounts receivable, the impact of local and regional financial crises on demand and
payment for our products and exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations; natural disasters, political and
economic instability, including wars, terrorism and political unrest, outbreak of disease, boycotts, curtailment of trade and
other business restrictions; certain expenses including, among others, expenses for travel, translation, and insurance; and
regulatory and compliance risks that relate to maintaining accurate information and control over sales and activities that
may fall within the purview of the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, its books and records provisions, or its anti-bribery
provisions. Any of these factors could significantly harm any current or future international operations and, consequently,
our results of operations.

General economic or business conditions may have a negative impact on our business.

Continuing concerns over U.5. healthcare reform legislation and energy costs, geopolitical issues, the availability and cost
of credit and government stimulus programs in the U.S. and other countries have contributed to increased volatility. If the
economic climate deteriorates or is poor, our business, as well as the financial condition of our suppliers and our third-party
payors, could be negatively impacted, which could materially adversely affect our business, prospects and financial
condition.

Healthcare reform measures could adversely affect our business.

In the United States and foreign jurisdictions, there have been, and continue to be, a number of legislative and regulatory
changes and proposed changes to the healthcare system that could affect our future results of operations. In particular,
there have been and continue to be a number of initiatives at the U.S. federal and state levels that seek to reduce healthcare
costs. In 2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (the "PPACA™) was enacted, which includes measures to
significantly change the way healthcare is financed by both governmental and private insurers. Among the provisions of the
PPACA of greatest importance to the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industry are the following: an annual,
nondeductible fee on any entity that manufactures or imports certain branded prescription drugs and biologic agents,
apportioned among these entities according to their market share in certain government healthcare programs;
implementation of the federal physician payment transparency requirements, sometimes referred to as the “Physician
Payments Sunshine Act” a licensure framework for follow-on biologic products; a new Patient-Centered Outcomes Research
Institute to oversee, identify priorities in, and conduct comparative clinical effectiveness research, along with funding for



such research; establishment of a Center for Medicare Innovation at the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services to test
innovative pavment and service delivery models to lower Medicare and Medicaid spending, potentially including
prescription drug spending; an increase in the statutory minimum rebates a manufacturer must pay under the Medicaid
Drug Rebate Program, to 23.1% and 13% of the average manufacturer price for most branded and generic drugs, respectively
and capped the total rebate amount for innovator drugs at 100% of the AMP; a new methodology by which rebates owed by
manufacturers under the Medicaid Drug Rebate Program are calculated for certain drugs and hiologics, including our
product candidates, that are inhaled, infused, instilled, implanted or injected; extension of manufacturers’ Medicaid rebate
liability to covered drugs dispensed to individuals who are enrolled in Medicaid managed care organizations; expansion of
eligibility criteria for Medicaid programs by, among other things, allowing states to offer Medicaid coverage to additional
individuals and by adding new mandatory eligibility categories for individuals with income at or below 133% of the federal
poverty level, thereby potentially increasing manufacturers’ Medicaid rebate liability; a new Medicare Part D coverage gap
discount program, in which manufacturers must agree to offer 50% point-of-sale discounts off negotiated prices of
applicable brand drugs to eligible beneficiaries during their coverage gap period, as a condition for the manufacturer's
outpatient drugs to be covered under Medicare Part D; and expansion of the entities eligible for discounts under the Public
Health program. Some of the provisions of the PPACA have yet to be implemented, and there have been legal and political
challenges to certain aspects of the PPACA. During President Trump’s administration, he signed two executive orders and
other directives designed to delay, circumvent, or loosen certain requirements mandated by the PPACA. Concurrently,
Congress has considered legislation that would repeal or repeal and replace all or part of the PPACA. While Congress has
not passed repeal legislation, the PPACA includes a provision repealing, effective January 1, 2019, the tax-based shared
responsibility payment imposed by the PPACA on certain individuals who fail to maintain qualifying health coverage for all
or part of a year that is commonly referred to as the “individual mandate”. Congress may consider other legislation to repeal
or replace elements of the PPACA.

Many of the details regarding the implementation of the PPACA are yet to be determined, and at this time, the full effect
that the PPACA would have on our business remains unclear.

Individual states have become increasingly aggressive in passing legislation and implementing regulations designed to
control pharmaceutical product pricing, including price or patient reimbursement constraints, discounts, restrictions on
certain product access, and marketing cost disclosure and transparency measures, and to encourage importation from other
countries and bulk purchasing. Legally mandated price controls on payment amounts by third-party pavors or other
restrictions could harm our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects. In addition, regional
healthcare authorities and individual hospitals are increasingly using bidding procedures to determine what pharmaceutical
products and which suppliers will be included in their prescription drug and other healthcare programs. This could reduce
ultimate demand for our products or put pressure on our product pricing, which could negatively affect our business, results
of operations, financial condition and prospects,

In addition, given recent federal and state government initiatives directed at lowering the total cost of healthcare, Congress
and state legislatures will likely continue to focus on healthcare reform, the cost of prescription drugs and biologics and the
reform of the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

While we cannot predict the full outcome of any such legislation, it may result in decreased reimbursement for drugs and
biologics, which may further exacerbate industry-wide pressure to reduce prescription drug prices. This could harm our
ability to generate revenues. Increases in importation or re-importation of pharmaceutical products from foreign countries
into the United States could put competitive pressure on our ability to profitably price our products, which, in turn, could
adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects. We might elect not to seek approval
for or market our products in foreign jurisdictions in order to minimize the risk of re-importation, which could also reduce
the revenue we generate from product sales. [t is also possible that other legislative proposals having similar effects will be
adopted. Furthermore, regulatory authorities’ assessment of the data and results required to demonstrate safety and
efficacy can change over time and can be affected by many factors, such as the emergence of new information, including on
other products, changing policies and agency funding, staffing and leadership. We cannot be sure whether future changes to
the regulatory environment will be favorable or unfavorable to our business prospects. For example, average review times at
the FDA for marketing approval applications can be affected by a variety of factors, including budget and funding levels and
statutory, regulatory and policy changes.

The transferability of the Securities vou are buying is limited

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12 months following your investment,
there will be restrictions on the securities you purchase, More importantly, there are a limited number of established
markets for the resale of these securities. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities in the future, vou may not be able
to find, or may have difficulty finding, a buyer, and vou may have to locate an interested buyer when you do seek to resell
your investment. The Company may be acquired by an existing player in the industry. However, that may never happen or it
may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12 months following your investment,
there will be restrictions on how you can resell the securities vou receive. More importantly, there are limited established
markets for these securities. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities in the future, you may not be able to find a
buyer. The Company may be acquired by an existing plaver in the same or a similar industry. However, that may never



happen or it may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

The Company may undergo a future change that could affect your investment

The Company may change its business, management or advisory team, [P portfolio, location of its principal place of
business or production facilities, or other change which may result in adverse effects on vour investment. Additionally, the
Company may alter its corporate structure through a merger, acquisition, consolidation, or other restructuring of its current
corporate entity structure. Should such a future change occur, it would be based on management’s review and
determination that it is in the best interests of the Company.

Your information rights are limited with limited post-closing disclosures

The Company is required to disclose certain information about the Company, its business plan, and its anticipated use of
proceeds, among other things, in this offering. Early-stage companies may be able to provide only limited information
about their business plan and operations because it does not have fully developed operations or a long history to provide
more disclosure. The Company is also only obligated to file information annually regarding its business, including financial
statements. In contrast to publicly listed companies, investors will be entitled only to that post-offering information that is
required to be disclosed to them pursuant to applicable law or regulation, including Regulation CF. Such disclosure
generally requires only that the Company issue an annual report via a Form C-AR. Investors are generally not entitled to
interim updates or financial information.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

The Company is offering Series CF Preferred Stock in the amount of up to 1,235,000 in this offering, and mav close on any
investments that are made. Even if the maximum amount is raised, the Company is likely to need additional funds in the
future in order to grow, and if it cannot raise those funds for whatever reason, including reasons relating to the Company
itself or the broader economy, it may not survive. If the Company manages to raise only the minimum amount of funds
sought, it will have to find other sources of funding for some of the plans outlined in “Use of Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.

We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital requirements as we grow. It is a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when we need it, we could be forced to raise
additional equity capital, modify our growth plans, or take some other action. Issuing more equity may require bringing on
additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our equity below its current price. If so, your
investment could lose value as a result of this additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your
ownership percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. [f we are unable to find additional investors
willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will choose to cease our sales activity. In that case, the only asset
remaining to generate a return on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced to cease our
sales activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company performing below expectations, which could
adversely impact the value of your investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact vour investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in the future, which mav reduce the
value of your investment in the Company. Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such designation, rights, preferences, and
limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to
the holders of common stock or other securities. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to be more favorable than the terms of
your investment, and possibly a lower purchase price per security,

Management's Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our management team with respect to the
application and allocation of the proceeds of this offering. The Use of Proceeds described below is an estimate based on our
current business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions of the net proceeds reserved
for one category to another, and we will have broad discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward-looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or operational performance are
hypothetical and are based on management’s best estimate of the probable results of our operations and may not have been
reviewed by our independent accountants. These projections are based on assumptions that management believes are
reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond
management's control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and such variances may be
material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or immediate family members
Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the Company (or their immediate family
members) may make investments in this offering. Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on
the campaign page.

Minority Holder; Securities with No Voting Rights



The Series CF Preferred Stock that an investor is buying has no voting rights attached to them. This means that you will
have no rights in dictating how the Company will be run. You are trusting in management's discretion in making good
business decisions that will grow vour investments. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation of our company, you will only
be paid out if there is any cash remaining after all of the creditors of our company have been paid out.

This offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may not have the benefit of information
that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine instruct the escrow agent to disburse
offering funds to us. At that point, investors whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors.
All early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not uncommon for material changes
to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’ businesses, plans, or prospects, sometimes with little or no notice. When
such changes happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amendment to our Form C with the SEC, and
investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their
money back. Investors whose subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and will have
no such right.

Non-accredited investors may not be eligible to participate in a future merger or acquisition of the Company and may lose a
portion of their investment

Investors should be aware that under Rule 145 under the Securities Act of 1933 if they invest in a company through
Regulation CrowdFunding and that company becomes involved in a merger or acquisition, there may be significant
regulatory implications. Under Rule 145, when a company plans to acquire another and offers its shares as part of the deal,
the transaction may be deemed an offer of securities to the target company's investors, because investors who can vote (or
for whom a proxy is voting on their behalf) are making an investment decision regarding the securities they would receive.
All investors, even those with non-voting shares, may have rights with respect to the merger depending on relevant state
laws. This means the acquirer’s “offer” to the target’s investors would require registration or an exemption from
registration (such as Reg. D or Reg. CF), the burden of which can be substantial. As a result, non-accredited investors may
have their shares repurchased rather than receiving shares in the acquiring company or participating in the acquisition.
This may result in investors’ shares being repurchased at a value determined by a third party, which may be at a lesser value
than the original purchase price. Investors should consider the possibility of a cash buyout in such circumstances, which
may not be commensurate with the long-term investment they anticipate.

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies that currently have products on the market and/or various respective
product development programs. They may have much better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources
than us. They may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than us, or superior products
than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that competitors will not render our technology or products obsolete
or that the products developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It should further be
assumed that competition will intensify.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership
The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the company’s holders of 20% or more of any
class of voting securities as of the date of this Offering Statement filing.

Number of Securities ) Percentag
Stockholder Name ed Type of Security Owned .
ADRIST&, LLC {Owned and managed by Amit 3,516,357 st Sile
Munshi)
ADRISTPL' LLC (Chwned and mansiged by Amit 4,545,455 Series Seed Preferred Stock
Munshi) 14.3%
ADRIS’F&, LLC {Owned and managed by Amit 1929.275 Preferred Stock
Munshi)
ADRISTA, LLC (Owned and managed by Amit S Series Seed-11 Preferred
. 256,155
Munshi) Stock

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Common Stock, Preferred Stock, Series Seed Preferred Stock, Series Seed-1 Preferred-1 Stock,
Series Seed-11 Preferred Stock, Series CF Preferred Stock, 2025 Convertible Note issued 11/18/25, and 2025 Convertible Note
10/02/25. As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the Company will be offering up to 1,563,291 of Series CF Preferred
Stock.

Common Stock
The amount of security authorized is 115,000,000 with a total of 10,173,712 outstanding.
Voting Rights
One vote per share.
Material Rights
There are no material rights associated with this security class
The total amount outstanding excludes 500,000 of shares that may be issued pursuant to outstanding warrants.

The total amount outstanding excludes 1,373,000 shares that may be issued pursuant to stock options, reserved but
unissued.

The total amount outstanding excludes 9,032,000 shares that may be issued pursuant to stock options issued.

The total amount outstanding excludes 5,468,628 Restricted Stock shares that may be issued in connection with deferred
compensation.

Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 110,800,000 with a total of 0 outstanding.
Voting Rights

{ne vote per share
Material Rights

Preferred stock rights are set by series in the certificate of incorporation and any applicable certificate of designation,
including any liguidation preferences, conversion features, and other rights, preferences, and privileges.

Series Seed Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 27,000,000 with a total of 17,857,140 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote per share
Material Rights

Distribution and Liquidation rights and preferences



The holders shall be entitled to be paid out if the funds and assets available for distribution to its stockholders, an amount
per share equal to the original issue prices for such share of Series Seed-1 preferred Stock plus any dividends declared but
unpaid.

Series Seed-1 Preferred-1 Stock

The amount of security authorized is 800,000 with a total of 738,694 outstanding.
Voting Rights

(One vote per share
Material Rights

Distribution and Liquidation rights and preferences

The holders shall be entitled to be paid out if the funds and assets available for distribution to its stockholders, an amount
per share equal to the original issue price for such shares of Series Seed-I preferred Stock plus any dividends declared but
unpaid.

Series Seed-11 Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 25,000,000 with a total of 19,054,237 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote per share
Material Rights

Distribution and Liguidation rights and preferences

The holders shall be entitled to be paid out if the funds and assets available for distribution to its stockholders, an amount
per share equal to the original issue prices for such share of Series Seed-I preferred Stock plus any dividends declared but
unpaid.

Series CF Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 50,000,000 with a total of 0 outstanding.
Voting Rights

There are no voting rights associated with Series CF Preferred Stock.
Material Rights

Distribution and Liquidation rights and preferences

Upon the completion of the liquidation preference payable to the Series Seed-I Preferred Stock, the holders of Series CF
Preferred Stock, together with the holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock and Series Seed-II Preferred Stock, shall be entitled
to be paid out of the funds and assets available for distribution to its stockholders an amount per share equal to the greater
of (a) the Original Issue Price for such shares plus any dividends declared but unpaid thereon, or (b) such amount per share
as would have been payable had all shares been converted into Common Stock immediately prior to such event. If the funds
and assets available are insufficient, the holders shall share ratably in the distribution.

Conversion rights

series CF Preferred Stock shares will convert only upon the event of conversion into publicly traded securities or under
circumstances defined as "Mandatory Conversion Time.”

For further information on the rights of these securities, please see the Company's Amended & Restated Certificate of
Incorporation attached the Form C as Exhibit F.

2025 Convertible Note issued 11/18/25

The security will convert into Nonvoting preferred stock and the terms of the 2025 Convertible Note issued 11/18/25 are
outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $450,740.61
Maturity Date: June 30, 2027
Interest Rate: 7.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%



WValuation Cap: None
Conversion Trigger: Qualified IPO, Acquisition for cash or Acquisition for Tradable Shares

Material Rights

There are no material rights other than the Holder's conversion right upon a Qualified 1PO or an Acquisition for Cash or an
Acquisition for Tradable Shares, and repayment provisions in connection with a Change of Control

2025 Convertible Note 10/02/25

The security will convert into Nonvoting preferred stock and the terms of the 2025 Convertible Note 10/02/25 are outlined
below:

Amount outstanding: $281,421.50

Maturity Date: March 30, 2027

Interest Rate: 7.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: Qualified IPO, Acquisition for cash

Material Rights

There are no material rights other than the Holder’s conversion right upon a Qualified IPO or an Acquisition for Cash, and
repayment provisions in connection with a Change of Control

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Series CF Preferred Stock of the Company, vou will have limited rights in regard to the corporate
actions of the Company, including additional issuances of securities, company repurchases of securities, a sale of the
Company or its significant assets, or company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may have
rights less than those of other investors and will have limited influence on the corporate actions of the Company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor's stake in a company could be diluted due to the
Company issuing additional shares. In other words, when the Company issues more shares, the percentage of the Company
that you own will go down, even though the value of the Company may go up. You will own a smaller piece of a larger
company. This increase in the number of shares outstanding could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public
offering, another crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, or angel investment), employees exercising stock options, or
by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock. If the Company
decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value dilution, with each share being worth less than before, and
control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns being less than before, There may also be earnings dilution,
with a reduction in the amount earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the Company offers dividends, and
most early-stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the Company).

Transferability of securities

For a vear, the securities can only be resold:

« InanIPO;
* Tothe company;

e To an accredited investor; and

¢ Toa member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created
for the benefit of a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce
of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

# Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $450,740.61
Use of proceeds: Working capital, research and development
Date: November 18, 2025
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation D



# Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $281,421.50
Use of proceeds: Working capital, research and development

Date: October 02, 2025
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation D

= Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $125,000.00
Use of proceeds: Working capital, research and development
Date: August 20, 2025
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation D

& Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $35,000.00
Use of proceeds: Working capital, research and development
Date: May 20, 2024
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation D

* Type of security sold: Convertible Mote
Final amount sold: $65,000.00
Use of proceeds: Working capital, research and development
Date: November 12, 2024
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation D

& Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $403,000.00
Use of proceeds: Working capital, research and development
Date: October 05, 2023
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation D

& Type of security sold: SAFE
Final amount sold: $1,078,712.00
Use of proceeds: Working capital, research and development
Date: October 19, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation D

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the tollowing discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of our operations together with
our financial statements and related notes appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains
forward-looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results and the
timing of events may differ materially from those contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors,
including those discussed in the section entitled "Risk Factors™ and elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum.

Results of Operations
Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:

Revenue

The company is a pre-revenue development stage biotech company, raising funds to conduct pharmaceutical development
such as clinical trials, regulatory submissions and manufacturing.

Cost of Sales
Cost of Sales for fiscal year 2023 was 50 compared to 30 in fiscal year 2024,
Oxeia does not have any sales at this stage of clinical development

Gross Margins

Gross margins for fiscal year 2023 were 50 compared to 50 in fiscal year 2024,



Expenses

Expenses for fiscal year 2023 were $1,939,043 compared to $1,219,002 in fiscal vear 2024.
Oxeia expenses in 2023 were higher than 2024 while concluding Phase 2a clinical trials.
Historical results and cash flows:

The Company is currently in the Clinical stage and pre-revenue. We are of the opinion that the historical cash flows will be
indicative of the revenue and cash flows expected for the future because as Oxeia moves through its clinical stage on the
way to drug approval it will continue to raise capital. Past cash was primarily generated through founders investments and
convertible notes, Our goal is to successfully complete our Phase 2b clinical study which if successful could be a significant
Increase in valuation of the company.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand, existing lines of credit, shareholder loans,
etc...)

The Founders continue to believe in and support ongoing operations with short term loans and convertible notes. Cash on
hand as of October 31, 2025; $4,624.38 Checking and $25,002.75 Banking.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these funds critical to your company
operations? Or do you have other funds or capital resources available?)

We believe the funds of this campaign are critical to our company operations. These funds are required to support the next
stage Phase 2b clinical trial.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the total funds that your company has, how
much of that will be made up of funds raised from the crowdfunding campaign?)

Oxeia has been 100% dependent on equity and debt financing through its Phase 2a clinical trial and anticipates the same
going into its next stage Phase 2b clinical trial.

How long will you be able to operate the company if vou raise your minimum? What expenses is this estimate based on?

The company has established a monthly budget for all R&D, G&A, and marketing activities through completion of the 160
patient Phase 2B study. The minimum offering amount will be used to initiate the marketing of the raise. If funds from the
offering are insufficient to complete the initiation we will raise additional funds through other channels.

How long will you be able to operate the company if vou raise your maximum funding goal?

The company has established a monthly budget for all R&D, G&A, and marketing activities through completion of the 160
patient Phase 2B study. The maximum offering amount will be used to complete the Phase 2B study through study report
finalization,

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to vour company? (Required capital contributions, lines of credit,
contemplated future capital raises, ete...)

Currently, the Company has not contemplated additional future sources of capital.

Indebtedness

o Creditor: 2025 Convertible Note
Amount Owed: $450,740.61
Interest Rate: 7.0%
Maturity Date: June 30, 2027
In addition to repayment at maturity (subject to any earlier repayment provisions), the note includes conversion rights
upon the applicable conversion triggers described in the Company’s securities disclosures.

¢ Creditor: 2025 Convertible Note
Amount Owed: $281,421.50



Interest Rate: 7.0%
Maturity Date: March 30, 2027

In addition to repayment at maturity (subject to any earlier repayment provisions), the note includes conversion rights
upon the applicable conversion triggers described in the Company’s securities disclosures.

Related Party Transactions

+ Name of Person: Alex Smith
Relationship to Company: Board Member
Mature / amount of interest in the transaction: $160,000
Material Terms: On April 5, 2022, the Company issued a Convertible note in the amount of $60,000 to Alex Smith, a
Board Member, which bears an interest rate of 7%. On May 5, 2016 the Company issued a Convertible note in the
amount of $100,000 to Alex Smith, a Board Member which bears an interest rate of 7%.

& Name of Person: Robert Wyand
Relationship to Company: Family member
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $40,000
Material Terms: On November 16, 2021, the brother of Michael Wyand, our Chief Executive Officer was issued a
Convertible note in the amount of 340,000 which bears an interest rate of 7%.

« Name of Person: Michael Wyand
Relationship to Company: CEQ & Board Member
Mature / amount of interest in the transaction: $10,000
Material Terms: On July 29, 2021, the Company issued to Michael Wyand, our Chief Executive Otficer, a convertible
note in the amount of $10,000 bearing interest at a rate of 7% per annum.

« Name of Person: Kartik Shah
Relationship to Company: Board Member and Founder
MNature / amount of interest in the transaction: $138,000
Material Terms: In 2016, 2019, and 2023, the Company issued a total of five convertible notes to Kartik Shah, a
shareholder of the Company, with an aggregate principal amount of $138,000. The notes bear interest at a rate of 7%
per annum. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the outstanding balance, including accrued interest, was $185,530 and
$175,843, respectively.

« Name of Person: Kartik Shah
Relationship to Company: Board Member and Founder
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $10,000
Material Terms: On May 16, 2024, the Company issued a promissory note in the amount of $10,000, bearing interest at
a rate of 5.25% per annum. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the outstanding balance of the note was $10,329 and
50, respectively.

o Name of Entity: Adrista LLC
Names of 20% owners: Amit Munshi
Relationship to Company: Founder & Board Member
MNature / amount of interest in the transaction: $370,000
Material Terms: In 2022, 2023, and 2024, the Company issued a total of three convertible notes to Adrista LLC, a
shareholder of the Company, with an aggregate principal amount of $370,000. The notes bear interest at a rate of 7%
per annum. As of December 31, 2024 and 20235, the outstanding balance, including accrued interest, was $422,189 and
397,434, respectively.

e Name of Entity: Adrista LLC
Names of 20% owners: Amit Munshi
Relationship to Company: Founder & Board Member
MNature / amount of interest in the transaction: $25,000
Material Terms: On May 16, 2024, the Company issued a promissory note in the amount of $25,000 bearing interest at
a rate of 5.25% per annum. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the outstanding balance of the note was $10,329 and
50, respectively.

& Name of Person: Vishal Bansal
Relationship to Company: Shareholder and Founder
MNature / amount of interest in the transaction: $220,000
Material Terms: In 2016, 2019, and 2023, the Company issued a total of three convertible notes to Vishal Bansal, a
shareholder of the Company, with an aggregate principal amount of $220,000. The notes bear interest at a rate of 7%



per annum. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the outstanding balance, including accrued interest, was $319,947 and
$304,504, respectively.

* Name of Person: Vishal Bansal
Relationship to Company: Shareholder and Founder
MNature / amount of interest in the transaction: $20,000
Material Terms: On March 1, 2022, the Company issued a promissory note in the amount of $20,000 bearing interest at
a rate of 5.25% per annum. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the outstanding balance of the note was 522 980 and
$21,927, respectively.

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $50,000,000.00

Valuation Details:

This pre-money valuation was calculated internally by the Company without the use of any formal third-party evaluation.

The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. In making this calculation, we have assumed: (i) all
preferred stock is converted to commeon stock; (1i) all shares issuable pursuant to outstanding warrants and granted options;
and (iii) all restricted common shares issued pursuant to deferred compensation are included for valuation purposes.

The pre-money valuation does take into account convertible securities currently outstanding. The Company currently has
$732,162.11 in Convertible Promissory Notes outstanding, which were assumed to be converted for valuation purposes
based on their conversion economics.

The pre-money valuation does not take into account unallocated options, which are reserved but not issued or granted. The
Company currently has 1,373,000 unallocated options.

Please refer to the Company Securities section of the Offering Memorandum for further details regarding current
outstanding convertible securities and their terms, which may affect your ownership in the future.

Use of Proceeds

[f we raise the Target Offering Amount of $19,999.64 we plan to use these proceeds as follows:

* StartEngine Platform Fees
7.5%

» Costs associated with the conduct of the fund raising
92.5%
Fees for markets and investor outreach

If we raise the over allotment amount of $1,234,999.89, we plan to use these proceeds as follows:

# StartEngine Platform Fees
7.5%

o R&D
32.5%
Fund Research and Development costs associated with Phase 2B study

* Marketing
30.0%
Marketing communications with existing and new investors

o G&A
30.0%
Personnel costs associated with non R&D activities

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or directors.



Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation Crowdfunding.
Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the report on its website no later than April 30
(120 davs after Fiscal Year End). Once posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
https://www.oxeiabiopharma.com/ (https://www.oxeiabiopharma.com/investors).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until:
(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and has fewer than three hundred {300)
holders of record and has total assets that do not exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including
any payment in full of debt securities or any complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.
Updates
Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.com/oxeia-biopharma

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a part.
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Oxeia Biopharmaceuticals Inc.
Boston, Massachusetts

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Oxeia Biopharmaceuticals Inc. (the "Company”),
which comprises the balance sheets as of December 31, 2024, and December 31, 2023, and the related
statements of operations, statements of stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year ending December 31,
2024, and December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements. A review includes primarily
applying analytical procedures to management's financial data and making inquiries of company management.
A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion
regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require
us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any
material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements related to our reviews.

Accountant’s Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying

financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Going Concern
As discussed in Note 12, certain conditions indicate that the Company may be unable to continue as a going

concern. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary should
the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

SeiApart Accountancy Corp.

May 30, 2025
Los Angeles, California




OXEIA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

(UNAUDITED)

As of December 31, 2024 2023
(USD S in Dollars)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash & Cash Equivalents 25,466 S 7,715
Prepaids and Other Current Assets 53,858 48,544
Total Current Assets 79,324 56,259
Intangible Assets 154,049 155,181
Total Assets 233,373 211,440
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 1,036,310 1,067,944
Credit Cards 30,696 29,620
Current Portion of Loans and Notes 55,000 20,000
Accrued Interest on Current Portion of Loans and Notes 4,113 a72
Current Portion of Convertible Notes 1,402,500 1,402,500
Accrued Interest on Current Portion of Convertible Motes 976,808 878,365
Other Current Liabilities 5,014,796 4,413,632
Total Current Liabilities 8,520,223 7,812,933
Convertible note, net of current portion 2,978,000 2,913,000
Accrued Interest of Convertible Notes 920,947 715,497
Total Liabilities 12,419,170 11,441,430
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock 108 108
Series Seed Preferred Stock 179 179
Series Seed-| Preferred Stock 7 7
Additional Paid in Capital 3,132,586 2,869,301
Retained Earnings/{Accumulated Deficit) (15,318,677 (14,099,675)
Total Stockholders' Equity (12,185,797) {11,229,990)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity 233,373 5 211,440

See geccompanying notes to financial statements.



OXEIA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(UNAUDITED)

For the Year Ended December 31,

(USD 5 in Dollars)
MNet Revenue
Cost of Goods Sold
Gross Profit/ (Loss)

Operating Expenses
General and Administrative
Research and Development
Selling and Marketing
Total Operating Expenses
Net Operating Loss

Interest Expense

Other Loss/(Income)

Loss Before Provision for Income Taxes

Provision/(Benefit) for Income Taxes
Net Loss

2024 2023
S - :
895,545 1,526,217
11,178 93,702
373 14,959
907,096 1,634,878
(907,096) (1,634,878)
311,886 304,319
20 (154)
(1,219,002) (1,939,043)
$ (1,219,002) % (1,939,043)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



OXEIA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(UNAUDITED)

fin , $U5)

Acfiemulated
Dreficit

Balance —Dwcember 31, 20322

Share-Based Compensation
e Lase

5 (12,160,632)

11.539,045)

Balance —December 31, 2023
Share-Based Compensation
Mgt Loss

& (14,009,675)

(1,213,002}

Balanoe —December 31, 2024

Series Seed Proferred Series Seed-| Freferred
Commian 5ock Sock Siack Badditiona Paid In
Shares Armount Shares Amount Capital

10,768,712 % 17857140 5 179 Tiggaq % 7 3 2555 708
313,595

10,768,712 % 17857140 5 179 TIE 694 £ 7 % 2 EE9.301
163194

10,768,712 & 17857 140 & 179 TEEGA4 & 7 b 5132 586

§  (15318,677)

fer porompenying notes o finaroc) stotements.

Total Seckhalders’



OXEIA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CasH FLows

(UNAUDITED)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023

(USD % in Dollars)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIMNG ACTIVITIES

Net Loss 5 (1,219,002) 5 (1,939,043)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Loss to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities
Amortization of Intangibles Assets 20,050 18,195
Accrued Interest 307,134 297,096
Share-Based Compensation 263,194 313,585

Fair Value in Excess of Stated Value of Derivative Instrument
Mon-Cash Lease Expense
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities;

Prepaids and Other Current Assets (5,314) 1,410
Accounts Payable (31,634) 21,774
Credit Cards 1,076 7,215
Other Current Liabilities 601,165 830,370
Met Cash Used In Operating Activities (63,291) (449,388)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Intangible Assets {18,958) (53,398)

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (18,958) (53,398)

CAS5SH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowing on Promissory Motes and Loans 35,000 -

Borrowing on Convertible Notes 65,000 403,000
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 100,000 403,000
Change in Cash & Cash Equivalents 17,751 {99,786)
Cash & Cash Equivalents —Beginning of The Year 7,715 107,501
Cash & Cash Equivalents—End of The Year ] 25466 5 7,715

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash Paid During the Year for Interest 5 4,752 5 7,223

Bee accompanying notes to financlal statement



OXEIA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND DecemBer 31, 2023

1. NATURE OF OPERATION

Oxeia Biopharmaceuticals Inc. was incorporated on March 19, 2014, in the state of Delaware. The financial
statements of Oxeia Biopharmaceuticals Inc. (which may be referred to as the "Company”, "we", "us”, or "our")
are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.5.

GAAP™). The Company’'s headquarters are located in Boston, Massachusetts.

Oxeia Biopharmaceuticals is a clinical-stage biotech company focused on developing innovative therapeutics for
neurocognitive disorders resulting from injury, degeneration, and ageing. Its lead candidate, OXE103, targets
mild traumatic brain injury (mTBI) and cognitive symptoms associated with Long Covid, addressing areas of high
unmet medical need with limited existing treatment options.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The summary of significant accounting policies is presented to assist in understanding the Company's financial
statements. The accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America ("GAAP" and "US GAAP").

Basis of Presentation
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with

US GAAP and the Company has adopted the calendar yvear as its basis of reporting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash in banks, cash on hand and all highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company’s
cash & cash equivalents did not exceed FDIC insured limits.

Intangible Assets
The Company capitalizes its patent and filing fees and legal patent and prosecution fees in connection with
internally developed pending patents. When pending patents are issued, patents will be amortized over the

expected period to be benefitted, not to exceed the patent lives, which may be as long as 15 years.

Long-lived assets, including property and equipment and intangible assets, are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recorded in the period in which it is determined that the carrying amount is not recoverable.
The determination of recoverability is made based on an estimate of undiscounted future cash flows resulting
from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. The measurement of the impairment for long-lived assets
is based on the asset’s estimated fair value. No such impairment was recorded for the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023.

Revenue Recognition

The Company is currently pre-revenue and will follow the provisions and the disclosure requirements described
in ASU 2014-09 also referred to as Topic 606. Revenue recognition, according to Topic 606, is determined using
the following steps:

1) Identification of the contract, or contracts, with the customer: the Company determines the existence of
a contract with a customer when the contract is mutually approved; the rights of each party in relation




OXEIA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND DecemBer 31, 2023

to the services to be transferred can be identified, the payment terms for the services can be identified,
the customer has the capacity and intention to pay and the contract has commercial substance.

2) ldentification of performance obligations in the contract: Performance obligations consist of a promised
in a contract (written or oral) with a customer to transfer to the customer either a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer.

3) Recognition of revenue when, or how, a performance obligation is met: Revenues are recognized when
or as control of the promised goods or services is transferred to customers.

Research and Development Costs
Costs incurred in the research and development of the Company's product are expensed as incurred.,

Income Taxes
The Company is taxed as a C corporation for income tax purposes. The Company accounts for income taxes under

the liability method, and deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying values of existing assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for
the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is
provided on deferred tax assets if it is determined that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax asset will
not be realized. The Company records interest, net of any applicable related income tax benefit, on potential
income tax contingencies as a component of income tax expense. The Company records tax positions taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return based upon the amount that is more likely than not to be realized or paid,
including in connection with the resolution of any related appeals or other legal processes. Accordingly, the
Company recognizes liabilities for certain unrecognized tax benefits based on the amounts that are more likely
than not to be settled with the relevant taxing authority., The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties
related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense,

k-B mpensation
The Company accounts for stock-based compensation to both employees and non-employees in accordance with
ASC 718, Compensation - Stock Compensation. Under the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718, stock-
based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized
as an expense ratably over the requisite service period, which Is generally the option vesting period. The
Company uses the Black-5choles aption pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options.

Eair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments included in current assets and current liabilities (such
as cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued expenses approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of such instruments.

The inputs used to measure fair value are based on a hierarchy that prioritizes observable and unobservable
inputs used in valuation technigues. These levels, in order of highest to lowest priority, are described below:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Observable prices that are based on inputs not gquoted on active markets but corroborated by
market data.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs reflecting the Company’s assumptions, consistent with reasonably available
assumptions made by other market participants. These valuations require significant judgment.

Advertising & Promotional Costs
Advertising and promotional costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising and promotional expenses for the years

ended December 31, 2024, and December 31, 2023, amounted to $373 and $14,959, which are included in sales
and marketing expenses.

-7 -



OXEIA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND DecemBer 31, 2023

The Company considers events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date, but prior to the issuance
of the financial statements to provide additional evidence relative to certain estimates or to identify matters that
require additional disclosure. Subsequent events have been evaluated through May 30, 2025, which s the date
the financial statements were available to be issued.

3. DETAILS OF CERTAIN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Prepaid and other current assets consist of the following:

As of December 31, 2024 2023
Prepaid Expenses 53,858 48,544
Total Prepaids and Other Current Assets 5 53,858 5 48,544

Other current liabilities consist of the following:

As of December 31, 2024 2023

Accrued Expenses 358,780 472,075
Accrued Salaries & Wages 1,063,651 959,192
Accrued Bonus 3,592,365 2,982,365
Total Other Current Liabilities 5 5,014,796 5 4,413,632

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of the following:

As of December 31, 2024 2023

Patent 5 200,504 S 181,946
Intangible Assets, at cost 200,904 181,946
Accumulated Amaortization (46,855) (26,765)
Intangible Assets, net s 154,049 s 155,181

Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $20,090 and $18,195, respectively.

Estimated annual amortization expense subsequent to December 31, 2024, is as follows:
Amortization

Period Expense

2025 5 20,090
2026 20,090
2027 20,090
2028 20,090
Thereafter 73,689
Total s 154,049




OXEIA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND DecemBer 31, 2023

5. DEBT

The Company had outstanding term loans/ notes payable with varying maturities. Details of loans outstanding
are as follows:

As of December 31, 2024 As of December 31, 2023
Principal {11 Barrpaing Paturity Currant Non-Current Total Currant Mon-Current Total

Dbl Instrument Name Armount Rate Period Date Partion Partion Indebtedness Portion Portion Indebtedness
Pramissary Note - Kartik Shah 4 10,000 525%  16/05/2024 15/005/2025(% 10000 % - 4% 10000 |% - % - %
Pramissory Note - Adrista, LLC 4 25,000 525%  16/05/2024 15/05/2025 25,000 - 25,000 - - -
Pramissary Mote - Vishal Bansal % 20,000 525% 010082022 2700472022 20,000 - 20,000 20,000 20,000
Total % 55,000 g sSLOng % . 5 55000 % 20000 5 . 5 0000
The summary of the future maturities is as follows:

Az of Year Ended December 31, 2024

2025 5 55,000

2026 -

2027

2028 -

2029

Thereafter =

Total 5 55,000
Convertible Note

The Company has issued convertible loan notes to various lenders. Details of Convertible Notes issued and
outstanding are as follows:

Az of December 31, 2024 A of E«ecember 31, 2023
Principal Interest Barrowing  Maturity Current  Mon-Current Total Current  NoR-Current Tatal

Debt mstrument Mame Amount Rate Pariod Date Portion Partion Indebtedness Portion Partion indebtedness
Convertible Motes- 2024 A 65,000 700 2024 13/31/2028] 5 - i 65,000 5 65,000 | 5 - 5 - 5

Convertible Motes- 2023 5 403,000 700k 2033 12/31/3036 - 403,000 403,000 . 403 (0 403,000
Convertible Motes- 2022 A 100,000 F00r 2022 13312026 - 100, D00 100000 - 10000 eey 100,000
Cornvertibble Motes- 2021 A 290,000 T U003 2021 12/31/2026 - 290,000 250,000 - 290 00D 290 000
Converti ble Motes- 2020 5 110000 7 0% 2020 1243172006 - 210,000 210,000 - 210, s 210,000
Corvertible Notes- 2019 4% 1,010,000 T 1D 2019 12/31/2026 - 1,010,000 1,010,000 - 1,000 00 1,010,000
Convertible Motes- 2017 5 L00000 7.0l 2017 113172006 - 00,000 S00,000 . LT SO0, 000
Convertble Motes- 2016 3 1,402,500 T 2016 12/31,/2024 1402500 = 1402500 1,402,500 1,402,500
Tatal % 4,380,500 $1402500 5 FATEOOD %5 4.3B0500 51402500 SZ913000 % 4,315500

Each note will be convertible into Conversion Shares pursuant to the following events:

« MNext Equity Financing Conversion: Upon the closing of the next equity financing (the "Next Equity
Financing™), the outstanding principal and any unpaid accrued interest under each Note will automatically
convert into shares of the same class and series of equity securities issued in such financing ("Conversion
Shares”), at a conversion price equal to the lower of (i) the price per share paid by the investors in the
Mext Equity Financing or (i} [a stated discount or valuation cap, if applicable]. At the Company’s option,
accrued interest may be paid in cash at the time of conversion. The number of Conversion Shares issued
will be based on the outstanding balance and accrued interest as of a date no more than five (5) days
prior to conversion. Prior to such financing, the Company is required to notify noteholders in writing of
the terms of the anticipated equity issuance.

« Corporate Transaction Conversion: In the event of a Corporate Transaction (such as a merger,
acquisition, or sale of substantially all of the Company's assets) occurring before conversion under the
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MNext Equity Financing or maturity, each holder may elect either (a) repayment of the outstanding
principal and unpaid accrued interest in cash, or (b) conversion of the Note into Conversion Shares,
calculated based on the applicable conversion price in effect immediately prior to the transaction.

« Maturity Conversion: On or after the maturity date, if the MNotes have not been previously converted or
repaid, the Requisite Noteholders may elect to convert the outstanding principal and unpaid accrued
interest of all outstanding Motes into Conversion Shares at the applicable conversion price.

The convertible promissory notes meet the Variable-Share Obligations requirements for classification under ASC
480 and as a result are required to be classified as a liability and carried at amortized cost, as the Company has
not made an election pursuant to one of the fair value options provided within ASC 815 and ASC 825.

6. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

During 2023, the Company authorized the Stock Option Plan (which may be referred to as the "Plan™). The
Company reserved 9,000,000 shares of its Common Stock pursuant to the Plan, which provides for the grant of
shares of stock options, stock appreciation rights, and stock awards (performance shares) to employees, non-
employee directors, and non-employee consultants. The option exercise price generally may not be less than the
underlying stock's fair market value at the date of the grant, and generally has a term of four years. The amounts
granted each calendar year to an employee or non-employee are limited, depending on the type of award.

Stock Options
The Company granted stock options to its employees and executives at various times. The stock options were
valued using the Black-Scholes pricing model with a range of inputs indicated below:

Expected life (years) 10.00
Risk-free interest rate 3.95%
Expected volatility 75%
Annual dividend yield 0%

The risk-free interest rate assumption for options granted is based upon observed interest rates on the United
States government securities appropriate for the expected term of the Company's employee stock options.

The expected term of employee stock options is calculated using the simplified method, which takes into
consideration the contractual life and vesting terms of the options.

The Company determined the expected volatility assumption for options granted using the historical volatility of
a comparable public company's Common Stock. The Company will continue to monitor peer companies and other
relevant factors used to measure expected volatility for future stock option grants until such time that the
Company's Common Stock has enough market history to use historical volatility.

The dividend yield assumption for options granted is based on the Company's history and expectation of dividend
payouts. The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its Commaon Stock, and the Company
does not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future,

Management estimated the fair value of Common Stock based on recent sales to third parties. Forfeitures are
recognized as incurred.
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A summary of the Company's stock options activity and related information is as follows:
Welghted Average Contract

MNumber of Awards Weighted Average Exercise Term
Outstanding at December 31, 2022 8,362,000 0.24 -
Granted 745,000 5 0.76
Exercised
Expired/Cangelled - -
Dutstanding at December 31, 2023 9,107,000 & 0.28 5.00
Exercisable Options at December 31, 2023 B.362.000 &% 0.28 5.00
Granted
Exercised
Expired/Cancelled - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2024 8,107,000 % 0.28 4.00
Exercisable Options at December 31, 2024 8548250 5 0.28 4.00

The Company recognizes compensation expense for stock-based compensation awards using the straight-line
basis over the applicable service period of the award. The service period is generally the vesting period. During
the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of
£263,194 and $313,595, respectively.

7.  EQUITY AND CAPITALIZATION

Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 115,000,000 shares of commeon stock with par value of $0.00001, As of
December 31, 2024, and 2023, 10,768,712 shares of common stock have been issued and were outstanding.

Series Seed Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 27,000,000 shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock with par value of $0.00001.
As of December 31, 2024, and 2023, 17,857,140 shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock have been issued and
were outstanding.

Series Seed-I Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 800,000 shares of Series Seed-1 Preferred Stock with par value of $0.00001.
As of December 31, 2024, and 2023, 738,694 shares of Series Seed-I Preferred Stock have been issued and were
outstanding.

8. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 consists of the
following:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023

MNet Operating Loss 5 (353,511) 5 (557.444)
Valuation Allowance 353,511 557,444
MNet Provision For Income Tax 5 - s -

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 21, 2024, and December
31, 2023 are as follows:

As of December 31, 2024 2023

Net Operating Loss 5 (1,589,925) 5 (1,236,414)
Valuation Allowance 1,589,925 1,236,414
Total Deferred Tax Asset 5 - 5 -
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Management assesses the available positive and negative evidence to estimate if sufficient future taxable income
will be generated to use the existing deferred tax assets. On the basis of this evaluation, the Company has
determined that it is more likely than not that the Company will not recognize the benefits of the federal and
state net deferred tax assets, and, as a result, full valuation allowance has been set against its net deferred tax
assets as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. The amount of the deferred tax asset to be realized
could be adjusted if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward period are reduced or increased.

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024, the Company had federal cumulative net operating loss ("NOL")
carryforwards of $5,482,499. Utilization of some of the federal and state NOL carryforwards to reduce future
income taxes will depend on the Company’s ability to generate sufficient taxable income prior to the expiration
of the carryforwards. The federal net operating loss carryforward is subject to an B0% limitation on taxable
income, does not expire, and will carry on indefinitely.

The Company recognizes the impact of a tax position in the financial statements if that position is more likely
than not to be sustained on a tax return upon examination by the relevant taxing authority, based on the technical
merits of the position. As of December 31, 2024, and December 31, 2023, the Company had no unrecognized tax
benefits.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. As of
December 31, 2024, and December 31, 2023, the Company had no accrued interest and penalties related to
uncertain tax positions.

9. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

nii Jilsl

The Company’s operations are subject to a variety of local, state, and federal regulations. Failure to comply with
these requirements may result in fines, penalties, restrictions on operations, or losses of permits, which will have
an adverse impact on the Company’s operations and might result in an outflow of economic resources.

Litigati nd Claim

From time to time, the Company may be involved in or exposed to litigation arising from operations in the normal
course of business. As of December 31, 2024, and December 31, 2023, there were no pending or threatened
lawsuits that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the results of the Company's operations.

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On April 5, 2022, the Company issued a Convertible note in the amount of $60,000 to Alex Smith, a Board
Member, which bears an interest rate of 7%.

On July 29, 2019, the brother of Michael Wyand, our Chief Executive Officer purchased a convertible note in the
principal amount of $10,000, which will convert into an aggregate of units in this offering, comprised
of shares of common stock and warrants to purchase shares of common stock.

In 2016, 2019, and 2023, the Company issued a total of five convertible notes to Kartik Shah, a shareholder of
the Company, with an aggregate principal amount of $138,000. The notes bear interest at a rate of 7% per
annum. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the outstanding balance, including accrued interest, was $185,530
and $175,843, respectively. Additionally, on May 16, 2024, the Company issued a promissory note in the amount
of $10,000, bearing interest at a rate of 5.25% per annum. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the outstanding
balance of the note was $10,329 and %0, respectively.

In 2022, 2023, and 2024, the Company issued a total of three convertible notes to Adrista LLC, a shareholder of
the Company, with an aggregate principal amount of $370,000. The notes bear interest at a rate of 7% per
annum. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the outstanding balance, including accrued interest, was $422,189
and $397,434, respectively. Additionally, on May 16, 2024, the Company issued a promissory note in the amount
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of $25,000 bearing interest at a rate of 5.25% per annum. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the outstanding
balance of the note was $10,329 and %0, respectively.

In 2016, 2019, and 2023, the Company issued a total of three convertible notes to Vishal Bansal, a shareholder
of the Company, with an aggregate principal amount of $220,000. The notes bear interest at a rate of 7% per
annum. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the outstanding balance, including accrued interest, was $319,947
and $304,504, respectively. Additionally, on March 1, 2022, the Company issued a promissory note in the amount
of $20,000 bearing interest at a rate of 5.25% per annum. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the outstanding
balance of the note was $22,980 and $21,927, respectively.

11. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On March 17, 2025, the Company issued a promissory note in the amount of £75,000 to Adrista LLC, a shareholder
of the Company. The note bears interest at an annual rate of 14% and matures on March 17, 2026.

12. GOING CONCERN

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the
realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company has a net operating
loss of 5907,096, an operating cash flow loss of $63,291 and liguid assets in cash of 525,466, which is less than a year's
worth of cash reserves as of December 31, 2024, These factors normally raise substantia